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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE  

Dear Shareholders, 

Good morning, ladies and gentlemen, I have much pleasure in welcoming all of you to the 5th 

AGM of Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited and present the audited Financial Statement 

for the year 2024-25. I thank each one of you for making it convenient for sparing your valuable 

time for this meeting. 

 

About the Company: 

It is my privilege to place before you, highlights of your Company for the Financial Year 2024-

25.  

 

IrconGRHL, a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (“IRCON”), has been 

incorporated as a Special Purpose Vehicle by its holding company (IRCON), on 24th December, 

2020. The main object of IrconGRHL is to carry on the business of “Upgrading of Gurgaon-

Pataudi-Rewari section of NH-352W from km 43.87 (design length 46.11 km) as a feeder route 

on Hybrid Annuity Mode under Bharatmala Pariyojana in the State of Haryana, in accordance 

with the terms of concession agreement with National Highways Authority of India (NHAI). The 

Concession Period of the project is 15 years excluding construction period of 2 years from the 

Appointed Date. 

 

The total project bid cost is ₹900 Crore (including GST) plus escalation wherein 40% project 

cost is reimbursable by NHAI and 60% is funded by SPV. Your Company is accordingly funding 

project Construction Cost of ₹685 Crore out of which ₹412.90 Crore is to be financed by way 

of Equity & Debt in the ratio of 1:3. The Company has availed the term loan facility of ₹309.68 

Crore from Indian Overseas Bank (IOB) on 25th June, 2021 for execution of project. The loan 

of ₹196.512 Crore has been disbursed by Bank as on 31st March, 2025.  

3



 

Due to various constraints like Covid-19, land encumbrances & delay in COS approvals upto 

31st March, 2025, your company has achieved a total progress of 63.68% and financial 

progress of 50% of the total scope covered in the Concession Agreement.  

 

Financial Performance: 

As on 31st March, 2025, the Net worth of your Company is ₹9952.47 lakhs; Total income is 

₹12199.02 lakhs and Profit after tax is ₹331.13 lakhs.  

 

Compliances and Disclosures 

Corporate Governance: Compliances and Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and 

rules thereunder are being fully adhered to by your Company.  As per Office Memorandum 

dated 10th July 2014 and 11th July 2019 issued by Department of Public Enterprises, CPSEs 

constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted from compliance of the DPE 

Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence, these are not applicable on your 

Company. 

 

Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) 

Your Company has requested IRCON to grant exemption from compliance of the Annual MoU 

exercise for the financial year 2025-26, in line with the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) 

Guidelines issued by the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) and IRCON vide its letter 

dated 20th February, 2025 has granted exemption to the Company from compliance of Annual 

MOU exercise for the financial year 2025-26 respectively.  

 

Acknowledgements 

I,on behalf of Board of Directors,express my heartfelt thanks for the valuable assistance and 

co-operation extended to the Company by Ministry of Road Transport & Highways (MoRTH), 

NHAI, Independent Engineer of NHAI, Ircon, Auditors of the Company and all those who 

have supported and guided us during the year. I express my deep gratitude to employees for 

their dedication, intellect, hard work. And last, but not least, I would like to thank my 

colleagues on the Board for their valuable contribution and continuous support. 

 

We look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead.  

 
For and on behalf of 

 Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited                                            
                                                                                                                               
                                                                                                                                          Sd/-  

 (Yogesh Kumar Misra)  
Chairman  

DIN: 07654014 
Date:   28th July, 2025  
Place: New Delhi  
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Dear Members, 

 

Your directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 5th Annual Report of Ircon Gurgaon 

Rewari Highway Limited (IrconGRHL) together with the Audited Financial Statements of the 

Company and Auditor’s Report for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025. 

 

1. BUSINESS OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS: PRESENT STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS: 

   

Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited (IrconGRHL), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon 

International Limited (IRCON) incorporated on 24th December, 2020 as a Special Purpose 

Vehicle (SPV) for executing the project works in the State of Haryana by National Highways 

Authority of India (NHAI). The main object of IrconGRHL is to carry on the business of 

“Upgrading of Gurgaon-Pataudi-Rewari section of NH-352W from 0 km to 43.87 km (design 

length 46.11 km) as a feeder route on Hybrid Annuity Mode under Bharatmala Pariyojana in 

the State of Haryana, in accordance with the terms of concession agreement with NHAI.  

 

The Concession Agreement has been signed with NHAI on 20th January, 2021. The Appointed 

Date fixed by NHAI is 24th November, 2021. IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor 

for execution of said work. The project is in the execution phase. The achieved progress was 

63.68% up to March, 2025 and is likely to be completed on 31st December, 2025. 

 

In terms of the concession agreement, the total project bid cost is ₹900 Crore (inclusive of 

GST) and first year O&M revenue is ₹2.50 Crore. The 40% of the project bid cost shall be 

reimbursed by NHAI during construction and balance 60% is receivable after construction in 

the form of Annuity. The total Project cost of ₹900 Crore out of which ₹412.90 Crore is to be 

financed by way of Equity & Debt in the ratio of 1:3. Accordingly, the Company has availed the 

term loan facility of ₹309.68 Crore from Indian Overseas Bank (“IOB”) on 25th June, 2021 for 

execution of Project. As on 31st March, 2025 a loan of ₹196.512 crore has been disbursed by 

IOB.  

 

Due to delay in handing over of the encumbrance free land, Tree cutting, NGT ban on mining 

in the vicinity area, 2nd wave of Covid-19 and other issues not attributable to the 

Concessionaire, there is a delay in the project planned progress for which EOT has been 

sought. Now, the EOT issue has been settled through conciliation and revised timelines for the 

balance work is considered up to 31st December, 2025 for the section from km. 0 to 6 

(considering this section involves shifting of EHT lines from 66 KV up to 400 KV at 6 different 

locations) and up to 31st December, 2025 for the section from Km 6 to Km 43 considering 
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integration of approaches of ROB against the reasons explained above subjected to removal 

of the balance encumbrances and to clear the pending COS proposals at the earliest.  The 

settlement agreement is likely to be signed by 29th August, 2025 for the revised project 

completion schedule. 

 

2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:  

 

In pursuance of the provisions enumerated under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015, the Company, has prepared its annual financial statements for the Financial 

Year 2024-25 as per Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS). 

 

Financial performance indicators as on 31st March 2025: 

                                                                                                                    (Amount in ₹ in Lakh) 
 

Sl. No. 
Particulars 

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2025 

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 

1.  Equity Share Capital 5.0 5.0 

2.  
Other Equity (includes 
Reserves and Surplus) 

9,947.47 9,616.34  

3.  Net worth  9,952.47 9,621.34   

4.  Borrowings  19,651.20 19,651.20 

5.  Total Assets and Liabilities  37,454.76 35,034.24 

6.  Revenue from Operations 11,789.12 24,387.98 

7.  Other Income  409.90 126.57 

8.  Total Income (6) + (7) 12,199.02 24,514.55 

9.  Profit Before Tax 446.59 553.33 
10.  Profit/(Loss) After Tax 331.13 414.06 

11.  Net Cash flow  (6,674.37)  7674.36 

 

3. DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATION TO RESERVE: 

 

The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend on the equity shares of the 

Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025. 

 

As per the applicability of Ind AS, Reserves are reflected as Retained Earnings under the 

head ‘Other Equity’ in Financial Statements and your Company has a balance of ₹1112.47 

lakhs in Retained Earnings as on March 31, 2025.  

 

4. SHARE CAPITAL/ DEMATERIALISATION: 

 

The Authorized Share Capital and the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on 31st 

March, 2025 is ₹4 crore comprising of 40,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹10/- each and ₹ 5 lakhs 

6



 

 
       

comprising of 50,000 Equity Shares of ₹10/- each respectively.  During the year under 

review, there was no changes in the share capital of your Company and Ircon International 

Limited (IRCON) continues to hold 100% paid-up capital of the Company.  

 

As per Rule 9A of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Amendment 

Rules, 2019 dated 22nd January, 2019, the Company being a wholly owned subsidiary 

(WoS) is not required to get its securities in dematerialised form.  

 

5. CASH FLOWS FROM THE PROJECT: 

 

The total Cash Flows from the project activities during the year is ₹ (6674.37) lakh. 

 

6. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

 

For the period under review there was no Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies 

of the Company.  

 

7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL: 

Board of Directors: 

 

CATEGORY & NAME OF THE DIRECTORS WITH DESIGNATION DURING THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25  

As per Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of the Company is appointed by 

the holding company (IRCON).  

 

During the year under review, the holding company has nominated Shri Alin Roy Choudhury 

[having DIN: 10489550] vice Shri B. Mugunthan [having DIN:08517013] w.e.f. 1st January, 

2025. 

 

The Board placed on record its appreciation for their valuable contribution and guidance & 

support given by Shri B. Mugunthan during his tenure as Director of the Company. 

 

As on 31st March, 2025, total number of Director is four (4) including Chairman, nominated 

by IRCON. Details of Directors are as follows:  
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Category, Name & 
Designation 

DIN Appointment or cessation (during 
the year, if any) 

Shri Parag Verma 
Chairman  05272169 

Appointed as Director w.e.f. 17th 
February, 2021 and re-designated as 
Chairman w.e.f. 10th October, 2022 

Shri Yogesh Kumar Misra 
Director 

07654014 

Appointment as Additional Director 
w.e.f. 1st February, 2024 
Regularized at the 4th AGM held on 12th 
August, 2024 

Shri B. Muguntha  
Director 08517013 

Ceased to be the Director w.e.f. 31st 
December, 2024 

Shri Masood Ahmad  
Director 

09008553 
Appointed as Director w.e.f. 24th 
December, 2020 

Shri Alin Roy Choudhury  
10489550 

Appointed as Additional Director w.e.f. 
1st January, 2025 

       

After the closure of the Financial Year, During the year under review, your Company had 

re-designated Shri Yogesh Kumar Misra [having DIN: 07654014], as the Chairman (Part-

time Nominee) of your Company, vice Shri Parag Verma w.e.f. 1st May, 2025. Shri Parag 

Verma ceased to be the Director and Chairman of your Company consequent to withdrawal 

of nomination by the holding Company [IRCON] w.e.f. 30th April, 2025. The holding 

Company has nominated Shri Surender Singh [having DIN: 09214484] as Part time Director 

in place of Shri Parag Verma w.e.f. 1st May, 2025.  

 

Shri Alin Roy Choudhury and Shri Surender Singh was nominated by IRCON as Additional 

Part-time Director of the Company w.e.f. 1st January, 2025 and 1st May, 2025 respectively, 

who hold office upto the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has 

received a notice under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from Shri Alin Roy 

Choudhury and Shri Surender Singh giving their candidatures for appointment as Directors, 

liable to retire by rotation, in the ensuring Annual General Meeting (AGM). Their 

appointment as Directors by Shareholders is included in the notice of ensuring AGM.   

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Yogesh 

Kumar Misra shall retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of your Company and 

being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors recommends his 

reappointment as Director and his brief resume is annexed to the Notice of the Annual 

General Meeting. 

 

None of the Directors is disqualified from being appointed/ re-appointed as Director. 
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 Key Managerial Personnel: 

 

Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

of the Company during the Financial Year 2024-25 are as follows: 

Category, Name & 
Designation 

Designation  Date of 
Appointment 

Date of 
Cessation  

Shri Kashi Nath*  Chief Executive 
Officer  

29.11.2023 - 

Shri Alin Roy Choudhury Chief Financial Officer  01.07.2021 22.04.2024 
Ms. Yamini Sahib Chief Financial Officer 22.04.2024 - 
Shri Ankit Jain* Company Secretary  17.03.2021 - 

   

  * Shri Kashi Nath ceased to be Chief Executive Officer of the Company w.e.f. 31st July, 2025 

  **Shri Ankit Jain ceased to be a Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 29th April, 2025.  

 

8. Board Meetings: 

 

During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Board met five (5) times on 24th April, 2024, 10th 

May, 2024, 2nd August, 2024, 29th October, 2024 and 31st January, 2025. The interval 

between the Board Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 

2013. The attendance details of the Board Meetings are as follows: 

  

Date of The Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present 

24th April, 2024 4 4 
10th May, 2024 4 4 
2nd August, 2024 4  4  

29th October, 2024 4 4 
31st January, 2025 4 4 

 

The table below shows attendance of the Board members at the Board Meetings held during 

the FY 2024-25 and their attendance in the last Annual General Meeting (AGM): 

Name of Directors Meeting Date Whether 
attende
d last 
AGM 
held on 
12.08.20
24 

Total 
Meeting
s held 
during 
the 
tenure 

No. of 
Meetin
gs 
attend
ed 

% of 
Atten
dance 

2
4.

0
4.

20
2

4 

1
0.

0
5.

20
2

4 

0
2.

0
8.

20
2

4 

2
9.

1
0.

20
2

4 

3
1.

0
1.

20
2

5 

Shri Parag Verma      Yes 5 5 100 
Shri Yogesh Misra      Yes 5 5 100 

Shri B. Mugunthan (upto 
31.12.2024)  

    - Yes 4 4 100 

Shri Masood Ahmad       Yes 5 5 100 
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Shri Alin Roy Choudhury 
(w.e.f. 01.01.2025) 

- - - -  N.A. 1 1 100 

 

9. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS & BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

GUIDELINES ISSUED BY DPE: 

 

In terms of notification dated 5th July 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 

inter-alia amending rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 

Rules, 2014, an unlisted public company which are wholly-owned subsidiary is exempted 

from the requirement of appointing Independent Directors on its Board. Also, read with the 

provision of Section 177(1), 178(1) and rule-6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its 

Powers) Rules, 2014, the requirement of constituting of the Board Committees viz. Audit 

Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) is not applicable on such 

companies. 

 

Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)’s OM dated July 8-10, 2014 

read with OM dated 11th July, 2019, CPSE’s constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) 

are exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for 

CPSEs. Hence, Corporate Governance guidelines of DPE are not applicable on 

IrconGRHL. 

 

IrconGRHL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary company of 

IRCON, is, therefore, not required to appoint any Independent Director on its Board and the 

declaration by the Independent Directors is not applicable on the Company. Further, the 

constitution of Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board 

is also not applicable. 

 

10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company confirms: 

 

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended  

31st March 2025, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with 

proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

 

b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgment 

and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
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fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year 31st March, 

2025 and of the Profit & Loss of the Company for that period ended on that date; 

 

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 

other irregularities; 

 

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

 

e) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

11. DIRECTORS’ OBSERVATION AND COMMENTS FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(EXPLANATION FOR ANY COMMENTS MADE BY AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT): 

 

The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanatory and 

need no further explanation. 

 

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report that require any 

clarification/ explanation. 

 

12. STATUTORY AUDITOR: 

 

M/s V M C A & Associates, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi, had been appointed as 

Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2024-25 vide CAG letter dated 21st September, 

2024. They have confirmed by way of written consent and certificate as required under 

Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT AND C&AG COMMENTS  

 

The reports of the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements for Financial Year 2024-25 

with NIL observation are attached separately as part of the Annual Report. CAG vide its letter 

dated 10th July, 2025 has conveyed not to conduct a supplementary audit of the financial 

statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025. 
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13. INTERNAL AUDITOR: 

 

The Board of Directors had appointed M/s. MM Associates, Cost Accountants as Internal 

Auditors for the FY 2024-25, to conduct the Internal Audit of the Company in terms of 

Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. During the year under review, M/s. MM Associates 

had conducted an internal audit on half-yearly basis and submitted their report to the Board 

of Directors. 

 

14. COST RECORDS AND COST AUDITOR: 

  

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act, read with Companies (Cost 

Records and Audit Rules), 2014, the Company has maintained cost accounts and records. 

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s Pawan Dixit & Co., Cost Accountants, as Cost 

Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 for conducting the audit of cost 

records maintained by the Company as per the applicable Rules / Guidance Note, etc. 

 

15. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT  

 

Pursuant to the provision of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of 

Directors have re-appointed M/s. A.K. Rastogi & Associates, Company Secretary, as 

Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the FY 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report for FY 

2024-25 do not contain any adverse observations and forms part of this Report. 

 

16. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 

OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

  

There are no transactions of loans, guarantees and investments as covered under the 

provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year under 

review. 

 

17. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

 

During the Financial Year 2024-25, the related party transactions with the holding company, 

IRCON were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and approved 

in terms of the Companies Act 2013. The details of the related party transactions in form 

AOC-2 are enclosed to this report as “Annexure – 1”. 
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18. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 

OF THE COMPANY AFTER THE CLOSURE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR: 

 

No material changes and commitments have occurred that affect the financial position of 

the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this report except as 

mentioned in this Annual Report.  

 

19. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

 

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder: 

 

A. Conservation of energy: - 

i. the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy – NIL 

ii. the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy – Nil  

iii. the capital investment on energy conservation equipment – NIL 

B. Technology absorption: - Not applicable  

i. the efforts made towards technology absorption; 

ii. the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product 

development or import substitution; 

iii. in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from 

the beginning of the financial year) 

a. the details of technology imported; 

b. the year of import; 

c. whether the technology been fully absorbed; 

d. if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the 

reasons thereof; and 

iv. the expenditure incurred on Research and Development. 

 

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: - Not applicable  

  i   Foreign Exchange Earned  

         ii  Foreign Exchange Outgo 
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20. RISK MANAGEMENT: 

 

In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does not foresee any major threat/risk 

to the business of the Company. 

 

21. CREDIT RATING: 

 

During the FY 2024-25, CARE Ratings Limited has provided CARE AA-(CE) Stable rating 

for the long-term bank facilities of Rs.309.68 Crore to your Company. 

 

22. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

 

Every company having net worth of Rs.500 crore or more or turnover of Rs.1000 crore or 

more or a net profit of Rs.5 crore or more during the immediately preceding financial year is 

required to spend in every financial year, at least 2% of average net profits of the company 

made during the immediately three preceding financial years. Since, the net profit (PBT) of 

the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 was Rs.5.53 crore which exceeds 

the above-mentioned threshold limit, therefore, the provision of Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 was applicable to the 

Company for the financial year 2024-25.  

 

In terms of the provisions of sub-section (9) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, where 

the amount to be spent by a company does not exceed Rs.50 lakhs, the requirement for 

constitution of the CSR Committee shall not be applicable on the Company. During the period 

under review, the CSR budget of the Company was Rs.6.96 Lakhs. Therefore, the 

requirement for constitution of CSR Committee pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 was not applicable to the Company 

 

Your Company is committed to compliance with the requirement of all applicable laws, rules, 

regulations and ensure transparency while conducting the business in an ethical manner. For 

the financial year 2024-25, the total budget for Rs.6.96 Lakh has been spent on CSR activities 

as per Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 by transferring the funds in PM CARES 

Fund on 2nd June, 2025.  The Annual Report on CSR activities required under the Companies 

(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is set out as Annexure-B forming part 

of this report.  
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23. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

 

As per Notification dated 5th June, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 

Government Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 197 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules under Chapter XIII.  

 

IrconGRHL being a government company is not required to disclose information on the 

remuneration of employees falling under the criteria prescribed under rule 5(2) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), 2014 as a part of 

the Directors' Report.  

 

In IrconGRHL, employees are deputed by its holding company. However, one employee is 

appointed on a contractual basis.  

 

24. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

 

There is no change in the nature of business of the company during the period under review. 

 

25. PUBLIC DEPOSITS: 

 

During the year under review, your Company has not invited any deposits from its members 

pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 

2014. 

 

26. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 

Adequate internal financial controls are exercised in the Company, keeping in view the size 

of operations of the Company. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting 

Standards for properly maintaining the books of account and reporting in the financial 

statements. The Company has appointed an independent firm of Cost Accountants as 

Internal Auditors to ensure that the Company’s systems and practices are designed with 

adequate internal controls to match the size and nature of operations of the Company. The 

Internal Auditors conduct a half yearly audit and review, covering all areas of operation. The 

Reports of the Auditors are placed before the Board of Directors for discussion and 

necessary action. 
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27. SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 

TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S 

OPERATIONS IN FUTURE  

 

No order has passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern 

status of the Company and its operations in future during the Financial Year 2024-25. 

 

28. COMPLIANCE OF MSME GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF PURCHASE 

PREFERENCE POLICY 

 

In exercise of powers conferred by section 9 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 

Development Act, 2006, the Central Government issued instructions that all companies 

registered under the Companies Act, 2013 with a turnover of more than ₹500 Crore (now  

₹250 Crore) and all CPSEs shall be required to get themselves on-boarded on the Trade 

Receivables Discounting System (TReDS) platform, set up as per the notification of the 

Reserve Bank of India. The Registrar of Companies (RoC) in each State shall be the 

competent authority to monitor the compliance of such instructions and also the Department 

of Public Enterprises, Government of India shall be the competent authority to monitor the 

compliance of such instructions by the CPSEs. In compliance with the above instruction, the 

Company has boarded on the TReDS platform w.e.f. 31st January, 2022 to facilitate the 

financing of trade receivables of MSEs by discounting of their receivables and realisation of 

their payment before the due date.    

 

29. DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

  

The Company being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ of IRCON (POSH Policy) is applicable 

on the Company and the Internal Complaints Committee of IRCON deals with all the matters 

under POSH Act. 

 

During the period under review, there was no incidence where any compliant relating to 

sexual harassment was reported pursuant Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women 

at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Further, the desired details 

are as follows:  

 

The number of sexual harassment complaints received during the year  -                     0  
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The number of such complaints disposed off during the year                  -                      0  

 

The number of cases pending for more than ninety days                          -                     0 

      

 

30.  STATEMENT ON MATERNITY BENEFIT COMPLIANCE 

The Company is complying with the provisions relating to the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961.   

 

31. VIGIL MECHANISM: 

 

The Company has established a mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns 

about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the Code. It also provides 

for adequate safeguards against the victimization of employees who avail the mechanism. 

Being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, for employees nominated and deputed from 

IRCON, the Whistle Blower Policy of IRCON is applicable, which is available on the website 

at , https://www.ircon.org/images/file/cosecy/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf. 

 

For other persons in employment of the Company, complaint/ reporting under Vigil 

Mechanism can be addressed to: 

 

Shri Masood Ahmad, Director 

Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited (IrconGRHL) 

Address: Ircon International Limited, 

C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi- 110017 

Phone No.: +91 -9560595062, Email id: masood.ahmad@ircon.org 

 

32. RIGHT TO INFORMATION: 

 

No application under Right to Information Act, 2005 was received by your company during 

the FY 2024-25, however, general RTI applications transferred from DPE were duly replied 

during the FY 2024-25, if any. 
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33. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD MEMBERS:  

 

Pursuant to the notification of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 5th June, 2015, sub-

section (2), (3) & (4) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding the performance 

evaluation shall not apply to Directors of Government Company.  

 

Being a government company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited, 

all part-time Directors of the Company are nominated by the holding company, IRCON. The 

evaluation of these nominated directors is done by the holding company as per pre-defined 

criteria in line with the guidelines of the Government of India. Hence performance evaluation 

of Directors is not applicable on your Company. 

 

34. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS  

 

During the period under review, the Company is in compliance with the applicable 

Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).  

 

35. APPLICATION/ PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY 

CODE, 2016 

 

There are no proceedings initiated/ pending against the Company under the Insolvency & 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company. 

 

36. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU): 

 

Pursuant to the provision of MoU (Memorandum of Understanding) Guidelines for year 

2024-25 (Consolidated) dated 10th March, 2025 of Department of Public Enterprises 

(DPE), Companies, that are subsidiary company of a CPSE, will sign Annual MoU with its 

holding company and holding company is free to take a decision regarding exemption from 

MoU for its subsidiary companies and process of exemption shall ordinarily be completed 

by 31st of March of the base year. 

 

In line with the MoU Guidelines of DPE, IRCON vide its letter dated 20th February, 2025 has 

granted exemption to the Company from entering into MoU for the financial year 2025-26. 
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37. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

 

We thank Ircon International Limited, the Ministry of Road Transport and Highways 

(MORTH) National Highway Authority of India (NHAI), various other Government Agencies, 

Banks, the Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) and Statutory Auditors for their 

support, and look forward to their continued support in the future. 

 

We also place on record our appreciation for the contribution made by our employees at all 

levels. Your Board of Directors also takes this opportunity to convey their gratitude and 

sincere thanks for the cooperation and assistance received from the Shareholders during 

the period under review. Our consistent growth was made possible by their hard work, 

solidarity, cooperation and support.  

For and on behalf of 
Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 

 
 

                                                                        Sd/-                                              
                            (Yogesh Kumar Misra)  

Chairman  
DIN: 07654014 

 
Date:  28th July, 2025 
Place: New Delhi 
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ANNEXURE - 1 
FORM NO. AOC-2 

 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with 
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arm’s length transactions under the third proviso thereto during the period from 1st 
April, 2024 to 31st March, 2025  
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: As follows 
 

       Note:  
       Apart from above said transactions, IRCON (holding company) has deputed its employee i.e. 

Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary to IrconGRHL and the salary, 
benefits (like PF, GIS, pension, related payments etc.) and other miscellaneous payment in nature 
if travelling/ ticket cost etc. paid to such deputed employees as per IRCON’s policy are reimbursed 
on actual cost basis.    

  
For and on behalf of  

Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 
 

Sd/- 
 (Yogesh Kumar Misra)  

Chairman 
DIN: 07654014 

 
 

Date:   28th July, 2025 
Place: New Delhi 

   S. No. 

Nature of 
contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions 

Duration of 
the contracts 
or 
arrangements 
or 
transactions 

Salient terms of 
the Contracts or 
Arrangements 
or Transactions 
including the 
value, if any 

Date(s) of 
approval by 
the Board, if 
any: 

Amount paid 
as 

advances, if 
any: 

1.  

EPC Agreement  
(For Appointing 
Ircon International 
Limited as EPC 
Contractor for 
execution of project 
works of  
“upgrading of 
Gurgaon-Pataudi-
Rewari section of 
NH-352W from km 
43.87 (design 
length 46.11 km)” 

Estimated 
Duration 730 
days (Period 
for 
Construction 
by EPC 
Contractor) 

 
The Contract has 
been awarded to 
IRCON for 
consideration of 
₹606.054 Crore 
exclusive GST @ 
12%. 

  
 

3rd Board 
Meeting held 
on 26th 
February, 
2021  

NIL (As on 
Date) 

2.  

Lease Agreement 
(To take on lease 
the Office 
Premises of 
IRCON) 

 (1st April, 
2023 to 31st 
March, 2025)  

Lease 
Agreement 
executed on 5th 
April, 2023 for 
rent @ ₹34,288/- 
p.m. plus GST  

Through 
circulation 
dated 22nd 
March, 2023 
and 
approved on 
22nd March, 
2023  

NIL (As on 
Date) 
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Annual Report on CSR & Sustainability 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company. 
 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is a company’s commitment to address social, ethical 
and environmental concerns in which it operates and contribute to develop a sustainable 
society through sustainability initiatives by conducting business in a manner that is beneficial 
to both, business and society. 

Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited (IrconGRHL) is committed to undertake CSR 
activities in accordance with provision of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (“CSR Rules”), as amended 
time to time and DPE Guidelines, 2014 (hereinafter collectively referred to as “CSR laws”), 
with the former taking precedence over the later in case of any conflict. 

The Company shall allocate the budget for CSR activities. The minimum budgeted amount 
for a financial year shall be 2% of the average net profit (as defined under CSR Rules) of 
three immediate preceding financial years. The Company may allocate more fund for the 
CSR activities in any financial year than the amount prescribed under the Act. 

The Company shall undertake CSR activities as per Schedule VII of the Act through following 
three modes of implementation: 

(a) Implementation by the Company itself; 

(b) Implementation through eligible implementing agencies as prescribed in CSR Rules; 

(c) Implementation in collaboration with one or more companies as prescribed in CSR Rules. 

If any amount spent in excess of requirement as per sub-section (5) of section 135, such 
excess amount may be set off against the requirement to spend under sub-section (5) of 
section 135 upto immediate succeeding three financial years subject to the conditions that: 

i) the excess amount available for set off shall not include the surplus arising out of the CSR 
activities, if any. 

ii) the Board shall pass a resolution to that effect. 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: As Company is not required to constitute a CSR 
Committee as the CSR expenditure does not exceeding Rs.50 Lakhs. 
 

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR 
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.: N.A. 
 

4. Provide the execute summary along with web-link(s) of Impact assessment of CSR 
projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8   if applicable.:  

 

Not applicable for this financial year.  
 

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135:  Rs. 348.07 
Lakhs.  

 

            (b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 6.96
 Lakhs    
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           (c)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or  programmes or activities of the previous 
 financial years: Nil 

 (d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)- (d)]: Rs.6.96 Lakhs   

    6.                                                                                                                                       (in Lakhs) 

(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Projects and other 
than Ongoing Projects).  

               0.00  

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads :   Nil  
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. :  Nil  
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]:  0.00  

 

      (e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Total Amount 
Spent for the 

Financial 
Year (in Rs.) 

  

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR Account 
as per sub-section (6) of 
section 135. 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second proviso 
to sub-section (5) of section 135. 

 Amount. Date of transfer. Name of the Fund Amount
. 

Date of 
transfer. 

0.00  NIL NIL PM CARES Fund 6.96 02.06.2025 

 

        (f) Excess amount for set off, if any 

 

           

 

 

 

 

 

 

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three            
 Financial Years: 

 1     2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
Sl.
No 

Preceding 
Financial 
Year(s) 

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR 
Account 

Balance 
Amount 

in 
Unspent 

CSR 

Amount 
Spent in 

the 
Financial 

Amount 
transferred to 

a Fund as 
specified 

under 

Amount 
remaining 

to be 
spent in 

succeedin

Defi
cien
cy, 
if 

any 

Sl. No.    Particular    Amount 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as 
per section 135(5) 

6.96 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 0.00  

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0.00 

(iv) Surplus arising out of  the CSR projects or  programmes 
or activities of the previous financial years, if any 

0.00 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 
years [(iii)-(iv)] 

0.00 
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under sub-
section (6) 
of section 

135 (in 
Rs.) 

Account 
under 
sub-

section 
(6) of 

section 
135 (in 

Rs.) 

Year (in 
Rs.) 

Schedule VII 
as per 

second 
proviso to 

sub-section 
(5) of section 

135, if any 

g Financial 
Years (in 

Rs.) 

 

 Amoun
t (in 
Rs.) 

Dat
e of 
Tran
sfer 

1 2020-21 
Nil 2 2021-22 

3 2022-23 
  Nil 

    8.       Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social               
 Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 

                                  Yes                              No 

                          

If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/acquired:-  No assets has been created.         

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social 
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: N.A. 

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as 
per section 135(5): Being the first year of CSR applicability, spend of CSR funds was 
inadvertently missed out. However, during the audit of Annual Accounts, it is observed that 
profit before tax should be considered for calculating CSR applicability, which is more than 
Rs.5 Crore. Accordingly, For the financial year 2024-25, the total budget for Rs.6.96 Lakh has 
been spent on CSR activities as per Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 by transferring 
the funds in PM CARES Fund on 2nd June, 2025. 

 
For and on behalf of 

Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 
 

 
Sd/-                                                                           

                                      (Yogesh Kumar Misra)  
Chairman  

DIN: 07654014 
 
Date: 28th July, 2025 
Place: New Delhi 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

√  
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A.K. RASTOGI &  ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

R-13/69, RAJ NAGAR 
 GHAZIABAD-201002 (U.P.) 
Mob:9650990414/9650990614 
anilrastogi3609@gmail.com, 
anil_rastogi29@rediffmail.com 
www.akrastogiassociates.in/ 
 

        
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31St MARCH, 2025 
 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014] 
 

To, 
 
The Members, 
IRCON GURGAON REWARI HIGHWAY LIMITED 
Plot C-4, District Centre Saket, 
Delhi- 110017 
 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliances of applicable 
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate Practices by IRCON 
GURGAON REWARI HIGHWAY LIMITED (CIN: 
U45309DL2020GOI374941), (hereinafter called the Company ) for the financial 
year ended on 31st March 2025. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our s books, papers, minute books, forms 
and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the 
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our 
opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2025 (Audit period) complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and Returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st 
March 2025 according to the provisions of: 
 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

24



2 
 

(ii)  and the rules 
made thereunder; - NOT APPLICABLE 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed   

thereunder; - NOT APPLICABLE 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations 

made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; - NOT APPLICABLE 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992   not 
applicable to the company as the shares of the company are not listed with 
stock exchanges during audit period. 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of 

Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015;  
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018;  
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Shares based Employee 

Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-

Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;  
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and 

Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and 
dealing with client; 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2021;  and 
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 

Regulations, 2018;  
(i) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company viz. 

1. Building and other construction workers (Regulation of Employment and 
conditions of service) Central Rules, 1998. 
2. The Arbitration and Conciliation Act ,1996 
3. The Disaster Management Act,2005 

                  
The Compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and 
indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been 
subject to review by the statutory auditor and the other designated professionals. 
 
We further report that Compliances/ processes/ systems under other specific 
applicable laws (as applicable to the industry) are being relied on the basis of 
periodical certificate under internal compliance system submitted to the Board of 
Directors of the Company.  
 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
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(i) Secretarial Standards as amended from time to time issued by The Institute 
of Company Secretaries of India. 
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock 
Exchange(s) and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements), 2015 
(Not applicable to the company during Audit period) 
(iii) DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSE. 

 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of 
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject 
to the following observations: 
 

1. The Company, being a Government Company under Section 2(45) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 as it is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International 
Limited is exempted from the requirement of having Independent Directors as per 
Notification No. GSR 839(E) dated 5th July 2017 issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, hence the Company is not required to have Independent 
Directors on its Board.  

 
2. The Company, being a Government Company under Section 2(45) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 as it is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International 
Limited is exempted from the requirement of having Independent Directors, 
therefore is also exempted from constitution of the Board Committees viz. Audit 
Committee and Nomination & Remuneration as per Section 177(1), 178(1) of the 
Companies Act 2013. 
 

 
We further report that: 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with   Non-Executive 
Directors as nominated by the Promoter Company viz. IRCON INTERNATIONAL 
LIMITED, as per the Articles of Association of the Company. The changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
Generally, adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board 
Meetings, Agenda and detailed Notes on Agenda were sent at least seven days in 
advance and in some cases at shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.  
 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 
We further report that during the audit period the company had no major events/ 
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actions having a major 
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.  

 
 
Place: Ghaziabad 

              Date: 09.07.2025            
 

   For A.K. Rastogi & Associates  
Company Secretaries 

ICSI Unique code No P2025UP104900  
Peer Review Certificate No. 3322/2023    

 
 

(A.K. Rastogi)  
                                                                                              PARTNER                                                          

Mem. No.: F1748 
 COP No.: 22973                                                                                  

    UDIN: F001748G000736328 
 

Note: Annexure 
A  an integral part of this report.  
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To, 
The Members 
 IRCON GURGAON REWARI HIGHWAY LIMITED 
 Plot C-4, District Centre Saket, 
 Delhi- 110017 

 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 
1.  Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 
company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on 
our audit. 
 
2.  We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable  assurance  about  the  correctness  of  the  contents  of  the  Secretarial records.  
The  verification  was  done  on  test  basis  to  ensure  that  correct  facts  are reflected  in  
secretarial  records.  We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
3.   We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 
Books of Accounts of the company and our report is not covering 
observations/comments/weaknesses already pointed out by the other auditors. 
 
4.   Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 
5.  The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management.  Our examination was limited to 
the verification of procedures on test basis and to give our opinion whether Company has 
proper Board-processes and Compliance-mechanism in place or not. 
 
6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company  nor  of  the  efficacy  or  effectiveness  with  which  the  management  has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 

      
For A.K. Rastogi & Associates  

Company Secretaries 
Place: Ghaziabad                                           ICSI Unique code No P2025UP104900  

 Date: 09.07.2025                                            Peer Review Certificate No. 3322/2023    
 
 

(A.K. Rastogi)  
                                                                                              PARTNER                                                                          

Mem. No.: F1748; COP No.: 22973                                                  
UDIN: F001748G000736328 
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V MeA & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To 
THE MEMBERS OF 
IRCON GURGAON REWARI HIGHWAY LIMITED 

NEW DELHI 

Report on the Audit of Standalone IndAS Financial Statements 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying Standalone IndAS Financial Statements of Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway 

Limited ("tbe Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 202S, and the Statement of Profit 

and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Incomes), Statement of Changes in Equity, and Statement of Cash Flow 

for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone IndAS Financial Statements, including a summary of 

material accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and t6 the best of our infonnation and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone IndAS fmancial statements give the infonnation required by the Companies Act ("the Act") in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in confonnity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 
("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs ofthe Company as 
at March 31, 2025, and profit and loss including (other comprehensive incomes), changes in equity and its cash 
flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SAs") specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone IndAS financial statements Section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India ("I CAl") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
standalone IndAS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion on the financial statements. 

Information other than the Standalone IndAS financial statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including annexures to the Board's 

Report, and Corporate Governance Report but does not include the standalone IndAS financial statements and 

our auditor's report thereon, which is expecteQ to be made available to us after the date of this Auditor's 

report. 

H-69, 1st Floor, SCC Plaza, Sector-63, Noida-201301 
Head Office: C-53, Flatted Factory Complex, Jhandewalan, New Delhi - 110055 

Ph: +91-12- 04216247 email: admin@vmca.net, website: www.vmca.net 
Firm Registration Number: 015546C 
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V MeA & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

Our opinion on the Standalone IndAS financial statements does not cover the other information and we will 

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other 

information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone IndAS financial statements or our knowledge obtained 

in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone IndAS financial statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is resPQnsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of the Act with respect 
to the preparation of these standalone IndAS [mancial statements that give a true and fair view of the [mancial 
position, [mancial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting Standards (lndAS) specified 
under Section 133 ofthe Act read with the Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015,as amended 
from time to time. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance and implementation of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets ofthe Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone IndAS [mancial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the IndAS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 

or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

) Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone IndAS financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone IndAS financial statements as 

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor's report 

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 

arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 

expressing our opinion on whether the Company has an adequate internal financial controls system in place 

and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use ofthe going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 

may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our Auditor's report to the related 

disclosures in the standalone IndAS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 

our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Auditor's 

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 

concern. 

• Evaluate the overall p'resentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the standalone IndAS financial statements represent the underlying transactions 

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including a~y significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I . As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (''the Order"), issued by the Central 
Government oflndia in terms of sub-Section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act; 2013, we give in 
the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 
the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the afores~id standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e) The provisions of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable since the 
Company is a government company. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over fmancial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B". 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

• The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a material impact 
on financial statements. 

• Based on the assessment made by the Company, there are no material foreseeable losses 
on long-term contracts that may require any provisioning. The Company did not have any 
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

• There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 

• The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than 
those disclosed in notes to accounts: -
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no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or 
entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been 
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity 
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(iii) based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caus'ed 
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e), 
as provided under (i) and (ii) above, contain any material misstatement. 

• No dividend is declared or paid by the Company during the current financial year. 

(h) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting 
software, during the current financial year, for maintaining its books of accounts, which have 
a feature of recording audit trail facility and the same has been operated throughout the year 
for all transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did 
not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tempered with. Additionally, the 
audit" trail has been preserved by the company as per statutory requirements for record 
retention. 

(i) As per notification no. GSR 463(E) dated 05.06.2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 

Government of India, Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the 
Government Companies. 
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3 , As required by Section 143(5) of the Act and as per directions issu~d by Comptroller and Auditor General 
of India, we report that: 

. 

.' 

51. D,irection's 
., 

(i) Whether the Company has system in place to the Company has system in place to, process all the 

'process all the accounting transactions accounting transactions through IT system. ,All 

through IT system? If yes, the implications of accounting transactions are accounted for through 

piOcessing of accounting transactions IT System and there is no financjalimplication on 

outside IT system on the integrity of the the integrity of the accounts. 

accounts along With the finanCial 1< 

implications, if any, may be stated, -
I' 

(ii) Whether there .is any restructuring of .an 'There are no cases of Tes,tr~quring of an e~isting 

existing loan '0Fcases Ofwaiver/,¥rite ,oWof l'oan or cases of waiver / write off of 

d~b.ts /Ioans/interest etc; made by a I~nder debts/19ans/inter~st etc. made by any, lender to the 

to the company due to the Company's eompany due to Company's inability to repay the 

inability to repay the loan? If yes, the loan, 

financial "impact may be stated. Whether 

such cases are properly !3ccounted for? (in 

case, lender is a Governrrient Company, then 

this direction is also applicable for statutory' 

auditor of lender company) 

(iii) Whether funds (grant / -subsidy etc.) According to the ihformation and explanation given 

received / receivable f0r spedfic sc~emes 'to us and as per our eX,ar,nination of records no 

from central/state agencies were properly funds (grants / subsidy 'etc.) have been received / 

accounted for' / utilized as per its term and 

conditior)s? List the caSes of deili!ltion, 

receivable for any specific scheme from central! 

: state agencies during F.Y2024-25 ' 

For V.M.c'A. & Associates 
Cilartered Accountants ' 
'Firm Regn~ No;: 015546C 

Noida, April 29,2025 
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ANNEXURE 'A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE INDAS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31sT 2025 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 

of accounts and reco~ds examined by us in the normal course of audit we state that: -

(i) (a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 

and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

B. The Company does not have any intangible Asset during the year ended March31,2025 and 

accordingly this clause is not applicable. 

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its Property, Plant, and Equipment by 
which all Property, Plant, and Equipment are verified, in accordance with this program Property, Plant 
and Equipment were verified in FY 2024-25. According to the information and explanation given to us, 
no material discrepancies have been noticed on sucl~ verification. 

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property during the year hence reporting under this clause 
is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us the Company did not revalue its Property, Plant 
and Equipment (including Right of use Assets) during the year. 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property 
under the Benami Transaction (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The Company does not have any inventory. 

(iii) 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits from banks or financial institutions at any 

point of time during the year. 

During the year, the Company has not made investments in / provided any guarantee or security or 

granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnership, or other 

parties. However, the Company has given advances to its Contractors in accordance with the terms of 

contract and recoveries are being made from the bills as per the terms of contracts. Accordingly, the 

requirement of clause (iii) (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 

is not applicable. 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments, provided guarantees and security referred 
to in Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. 
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(vi) The maintenant:e of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-Section (1) 

of Section 148 of the Companies Act. We have broadly reviewed the records and are of the opinion that 

prima face, the prescribed accounts and records have been made are maintained by the company. 

However, we are neither required to carry out nor have carry out any detailed examination of such 

accounts and records. 

(vii) (a) According to the records, infonnation and explanations provided to us in respect of statutory d4es, the 
Company is generally regular in depositing with respective authorities undisputed statutory dues 
including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Income Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and any other 
statutory dues as applicable to it with the appropriate authorities and no undisputed amounts payable 
were outstanding as at March 31 st, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable. Employees' State Insurance is not applicable to the Co~pany. 

(b) According to the information and explanation provided to us, there are no disputed statutory dues in 

respect of sub clause (a) above, which have not been deposited. 

(viii) According to the information and explanation provide to us, there are no transactions which are not 

recorded in the books of account or have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in 

the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

defaulted in repayment of loans and other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any 

lender during the year under audit. 

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other 

lender. 

( c) Term loans received by the Company were applied for the purpose for which loans were obtained 

except at the end of FY 24-25 Rs. 16 Crores has temporarily been parked in fixed deposits and carried 

forward to FY 25-26 for utilization for the intended purpose. 

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company has not raised any short-term 

funds during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(ix) (d) of the order is not applicable. 

(e ) On an overall examination of the financial statements, the Company has not taken any funds from any 

entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its associates. 

( f ) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in associates 

hence reporting under clause 3{ix)(f) of the order is not applicable. 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 

debt instruments) and term loans during the year. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 

of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 

or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. 
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(xi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company 

has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) No report under subsection (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the 

Auditors in form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 

Central Government. 

(c) During the year the company did not receive any complaints from Whistle- blower. 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 
company. 

(xiii) , According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of 
the Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the standalone IndAS fmancial 
statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(b) Reports from the internal auditors for the period under audit were considered by us. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected ~ith its directors. 

(xvi) The Company is not a Non-Banking Financial company & Core Investment company, hence registration 
. under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank ofIndia Act, 1934 is not required. Accordingly, the requirement 

of clause (xvi) (a), (b), (c), (d) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable. 

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
ofthe Company, the Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately 
preceding financial year. 

(xviii) During the year there has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors. 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios; ageing and expected dates of realization of fmancial assets and 
payment of fmandal liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, and our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we make an opinion that no material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of mee~ing its liabilities 
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date. We however state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We 
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give 
any guarantee nor the assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when fell due. 
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(xx) (alAccording,to the information and explanations given to us and base~ on our examination oflhe books 
there is an unspent amount of Rs. 6.96 lacs towards Corporate Social Responsibility (eSR) on other than 
ongofrtg projects, which is required to be transferred as specified in Schedule VU 10 the Companies Act 
within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to 
sub·section (5) of section 135 oflhe sc1id Act 

(b) According to the infonnatjon and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amounll0wards 
Corporate Social Responsjbility (CSR) on any ongoing projects requiring a transfer to aspedal account 
in compliance with the provision ofsuh-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act 

(xxi) The reporting under Clause 3(xx.i) oflhe order is nol applicable in respect of the standalone fmancial 
statement~ of the Company. ' 

for V.M.e.A. & Associafes 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No.: 01 5546C 

UDIN : 

Noida, April 29,2025 
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE INDAS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COAMPANY. 

REPORT ON INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (liTHE ACT"). 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway 
Limited as of 31 51 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone IndAS financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal fmancial controls 
based on the internal control over fmancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit ofInternal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("the ICAI"). These responsibilities include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal fmancial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, 
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal fmancial controls, and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over fmancial 
reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over fmancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal fmancial controls 
over fmancial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal fmancial controls over fmancial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the Auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fmancial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over fmancial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A Company's internal fmancial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of fmancial reporting and the preparation of standalone IndAS financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's 
int~rnal financial control ov~r fmancial reportin~ includ~s thos~ polici~s and proc~dur~s that (1) p~rtain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets ofthe Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to p ~ 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------~~~~~~ 
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prepar.ation of stand alone IndASfmanciaJ statements in a0cordance wjth gene(aUy accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company ar~ being made only :in aCCOfdapce with authqrisations of 
management an'd directors of the Comp~y; and (3) pro\dde reasonable assutance.ff!gardllg prevention or timely 
. detee~ion of unauthorised acqu'isition; use, or disposition of.the Company's assets that could have a lUat~rial effec~ 
on the financial s~tements. -

. , " , , 

,Inherent ~imitati()ns of Internal Financial Controls Over FinancialReporting 

B~cause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including thepossil:!ility 
of coIillsion or improper management override of controls, m.aterial misstatem.ents due to'errQT or fraud may occw 

• 'and not be detected. AlsQ, proj'ecti9nsof. any evaluation of the internal financial controls'over financial reportin'g 
to ,future periods are subj'e9t to the risk that the internal'financial control over .fimincial reporting may become 
inadequate because of c,hanges ill o~>Dditions, or that the degree of compliance with 111e polici~s 9,1" procedmesmay 
deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects" an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and such .internal finan,cial controls over financial reporting were operating effeCtively' as at 

31~t March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of In~ernal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Inqia. 

For V.M,C.A. & Associates -
Chartered A CCOllnit11lts 

Fi:rmIRcgn. No.: 015546C 

Naida, April 29, 2025 

, -
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Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 
CIN:-U45309DL2020GOI374941 
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025 
(/11/ amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 
(b) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 
(c) Financial Assets 

(i) Other Financial Assets 
(d) Other Non-Current Assets 

Total Non-Current Assets 
Current assets 

(a) Financial Assets 
(i) Trade receivables 
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(iii) Loans 
(iv) Other Financial Assets 

(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 
(c) Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

ity 
(a) Equity Share Capital 
(b) Other Equity 

Total Equity 
Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Lease Liabilities 
(iii) Trade Payables 
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than of micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 
(i) Lease Liabilities 
(ii) Trade Payables 
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than of micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 
(b) Other Current Liabilities 
(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 

Total Current Liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES .. 
Summary of malenal accounting policies 
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. 
As per our report of even date 
V M C A & Associates 
ICAI Firm RelJ=st !O~N : 015546C 
Chartered unt&ts\ ~ ... . , ~"O 

/C; ' ",.,. 
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Note 
As at As at 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

3 0.92 0.43 
4 0.26 

5 21,883.43 19,318.73 
-

21 ,884.35 19,319.42 

6 
6.1 795.65 1,462.75 
6.2 1,948.38 8,622.75 

- -
6.3 5,184.39 1,086.14 
7 59.42 98.82 
8 7,582.57 4,444.36 

15,570.41 15,714.82 
37,454.76 35,034.24 

9 5.00 5.00 
10 9,947.47 9,616.34 

9,952.47 9,621.34 

11 19,651.20 19,651.20 
-
- -
- -

4 0.05 -
19,651.25 19,651.20 

- -
12 

12.1 2.64 1.30 

12.1 1,819.90 2,530.98 

12.2 1,801.82 966.47 
13 4,226.68 2,262.95 
14 - -

7851.04 5,761 .70 
37,454.76 35,034.24 
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Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 
elN :·U45309DL2020GOI37 4941 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 st March 2025 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise slaled) 

Particulars 

Income 

Revenue from operations 

Other income 

Total Income (A) 

Expenses 

Project Expenses 

Employee benefits expenses 

Finance Costs 

Depreciation and amortization expenses 

Other expenses 

Total expenses (B) 

Profit/(Loss) before tax (A·B) 

Tt7penses 

Current tax 

Tax adjustment of earlier years 

Deferred tax (net) 

Profit/(Loss) for the period 
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 

A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Income tax relating to Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 

Income tax relating to Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 

Other comprehensive Income/(loss) for the period (net of tax) 
Total Comprehensive income/(loss) for the period 

Earnings per equity share (Face Value Per Equity Share Rs. 10) 

Basic (In Rs.) 

DilJ(lnRs.) 

Summary of material accounting policies 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 

Place: Noida 

Date: 29.04.2025 

Note 

15.1 

15.2 . 
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17 

18 
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19 

4 

23 
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1 to 39 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

11,789.12 24,387.98 

409.90 126.57 

12,199.02 24,514.55 

9,836.68 23,125.20 

130.96 112.04 

1,755.35 710.54 

0.31 0.07 

29.13 13.37 

11 ,752.43 23,961 .22 

446.59 553.33 

113.94 138.99 

1.21 . 

0.31 0.28 

115.46 139.27 

331.13 414.06 

- -
- -
- -
. -

. 
331.13 414.06 

662.26 828.12 

662.26 828.12 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 

(DIN:-10489550) 
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\\) ~ 0 ~ 

\~~ 
(Ch ie.f Finance Officer) 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 29.04.2025 

rector 

(DIN :'0~8553) 

Kashl tl).t "" 
(Chief Exec~t e Officer) 
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Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 
CIN :·U45309DL2020GOI37 4941 
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025 
(All amounts in Indian Rup_ees Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

A. Cash flow from operating activities 
Profit before tax 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation/Amortization 
Interest Income 
Interest Expenses 
Loss on disposal of assets 
Bad Debts 
Tax for the Earlier Years 
Operating profit before working capital changes 
Movements in working capital: 
Increase/(decrease) in other non-current liability 
Increase/(decrease) in olher current financial liabilities 
Increase/(decrease) in Current Trade Payables 
Increase/(decrease) in other non-current financial liabilities 
Increase/(decrease) in other current liability 
Increase/(decrease) in non-current provisions 
Increase/(decrease) in current provisions 
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 
Dfilcrease/(increase) in non current financial loans 

ease/Qncrease) in Loans & current financial assets 
Decrease/(increase) in Current tax Asset/Liabilities (Net) 
Decrease/(increase) in other Non-current financial assets 
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets 
Cash Generated from Operation 
Less: Income Tax (Paid)/refund 
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities 

B. Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of PPE 
Sale of PPE 
Interest Income 

Net cash flow froml(used in) investing activities 

C. Cash flow from financing activities 
Proceeds from borrowing 
Proceeds from fresh issue of share capital 
Interest expenses on Borrowings 
Inetrest free loan From Ircon International Limited as quasi capital 
Net cash flow from/(used in) in financing activities 

:JncreaSe!(deCreaSe) in cash and cash equivalents 
and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 

Closing cash and cash equivalents 
Notes: 
1. Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow. 

. 

(A) 

(B) 

(C) 

(A+ B +C) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

446.59 553.33 

0.31 0.07 
(370.29) (52.16) 

1,677.29 550.14 
- -
- -
- -

1,753.90 1051.38 

- -
835.35 389.19 

(709.74) (1,672.25) 
- -

1,963.72 (1,343.00) 
-. -

667.09 3,092.21 
. 
-

(4,092.53) (67.12) 
-

(2,564.69) (12,089.02) 
(3,138.21) (2.420.63 
(5,285.11) (13,059.24 

(75.74) (118.92) 
(5,360.85) (13,178.16) 

(0.80) (0.51) 
. 

364.57 52.16 

363.77 51.65 

- 19,651.00 
- -

(1,677.29) (550.13) 
- 1,700.00 

(1 ,677.291 20800.87 

(6,674.37) 7,674.36 
8,622.75 948.39 

1,948.38 8,622.75 

2. The Statement of Cash flows has been prepared under the Indirect method set out in Ind AS-7 'Statement of Cash Flow' notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
3. Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents and Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents included in the above Statement of Cash Flows: 

Particulars 

Components of cash and cash equivalents' 
- Cash on hand 
- With banks in current account 
- Deposit with oriainal maturity of less than 3 months 

Total cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash Flows . Earmarked Fund 

4. Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from financing activities as on 31.03.2025 

P~rticlilars 

Opening balances 
Cash flows: 
- Repayments 
- Proceeds 
- Interest Expense 

As at 
31 st March, 2025 

7.38 
1.941.00 
1.948.38 

Loan From lOB 

19,651.20 

As at 
31st March, 2024 

3.75 
8,619.00 
8,622.75 

Interest on Loan from 
lOB 

(1,677.29) 

/' 1,677.29 
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1 Clo.sing balances 19,651 .20 ,I 

T . Reconcllation 0 fl' b'liti la I . I fi es ans ng rom manclng activities as on 31032024 
Particulars 

loan From lOB Interest on loan from 
-

Opening balances 0.20 
Cash flows: 
- Repayments - (550.14) 
- Proceeds 19,651.00 -
- Interest Expense 550.14 
Closing balances 19.651.20 . 
Notes: 
1. Figures in brackets indicale cash outflow. 

2. The Statement of Cash flows has been prepared under Ihe Indirecl melhod set out in Ind AS-7 'Statement of Cash Flow' notified under Ihe Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. 

Summary of material accounting policies 
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of1!~ 
V M C A & Associates 
ICAI Firm Is~atlon No. : 015546C 
Charter Ac '0 nl nts 

Place: Naida 
Date: 29.04.2025 

o 

11039 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 29.04.2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 

Director 

~~~'~ 
(Chief Exec~OmCer) 
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Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 
CIN:·U45309DL2020GOI374941 
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2025 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

(a) E Sh C ' I :quity are aPlta 
Particulars Amount 
Balance as at 01 st April, 2023 5.00 
Changes In equity share caQilal during the J'ear -
Balance as at 31st March 2024 5.00 
Balance as at 01 st April, 2024 5.00 
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31st March 2025 5.00 

(b) a hE ' t er :qUlty 
Particulars Reserves & Surplus 

Retained Earnings 

Balance as at 01st April, 2023 367.28 6:) for the year 414.06 
01" r Comprehensive income -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 414.06 
Addition in Quasi Equity -
Balance as at 31 st March 2024 781.34 

Balance as at 01 st April, 2024 781.34 
Profit for the year 331.13 
Other comprehensive income for the year -
Total comprehensive income for the year 331.13 
Addition in Quasi Equity . 
Balance as at 31st March 2025 1,112.47 

Other Comprehensive Income Quasi equity" Total 

- 7,135.00 7,502.28 
- 414.06 
- - -
- . 414.06 
- 1,700.00 1.700.00 
· 8,835.00 9616.34 

· 8,835.00 9,616.34 
- - 331.13 
- - -
· . 331.13 
- - . 
· 8,835.00 9,947.47 

'Represents Interest Free Loans/quasI eqUity received from the holding company In lieu of the planned equity Investment repayable at the end of the project and accounted as 
Equity Instruments in terms of"lnd AS 32: Financial Instruments: Presentation". 

Summary of material accounting policies 
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. 

Place: Noida 
Date: 29.04.2025 

2 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Alin Roy Choudhury 
Director 
(DIN:·10489550) 

\f) JU~ 
y\~ 
(Chief Finance Officer) 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 29.04.2025 

Ireon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 

Masoo d 
O1r ctor 

(OIN:·09008553) 

~,t 
(Chief Executive Officer) 
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-, 
Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

1. Corporate Information 

2. 

2.1. 

i. 

ii. 

Ircon Gurgaon Rewarihighway Limited (Ircon9RHL) is a wholly owned subsidiary ofIrcon International 
Limited (IRCON) , public sector construction company domiciled in India. IrconGRHL (CIN 
U45309DL2020GOI374941) is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable 
in India The Company came into existence when TRCON was awarded the work of "Upgradation of 
Gurgaon-Pataudi-Rewari section of NH-352 from .K.!n 0.00 to Km 43.87 (design length46.uKm) as 
feeder route on Hybrid annuity mode tmder Bharatmala Pariyojna in the State of Haryana" in accordance 
with the terms and conditions in the Concession Agreement by National Highway Authority of India 
CNHAI). In pursuant to the provisions of' Requestfor Proposal", the selected bidder 'IRCON has formed 
a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) named Treon Gurgaon Rewari Highway limited as wholly owned 
subsidiaryofIRCON, incorporated on 24.12.2020. Accordingly, IrconGRHLhas signed the Concession 
Agreement with NHAI on 20.m.2021 for the project value amounting to Rs 900 Crore. The Concession 
period is 730 days commencing from Appointed Date i.e. 24.11. 2021.Additional works as change of scope 
for a value of Rs.258.07 crores has been awarded by NHAI & has accorded approval of EOT up to 
31.12.2025 The registered office of the company is located at C-4, District Centre, Sal<et, and New Delhi 
110017· 

. The presentation and functional currency of the company is Indian Rupees (INR). Figures in financial 
statements are presented in lakh, by rounding off up to two decimals except for per share data and as 
otherwise stated. 

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors in their meeting 
held on 29.04.2025 

Material accounting policies 

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements 

Statement of compliance 

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared on going concern basis 
following accrual system of accounting and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule ill to the 
Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the standalone financial 
statements. 

Basis of measurement 

The·Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for 
the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value: 

• Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value. 

iii. Functional and Presentation Currency 

These Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (TNR) which is the Company's 
functional currency. All amounts ha e been rounded to the nearest Lakhs up to two decimals except for 
per share data, unless otherwise stated. 
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Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

2.2. Sununary of material accounting policies 

A summary of the material accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are 
as given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the 
financial statements. 

2.2.1. Current and non-current classification 

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash 
and cash equivalents, the Company has determined twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose 
of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current in the balance sheet. 
Deferred tax assets or liabilities are classified as non-current assets or liabilities. 

2.2.2. Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at their cost. 

J The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment includes: 

(a)its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade 
discounts and rebates; 
(b) Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset which incurred in bringing the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or 
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Company and th~ cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line basis over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets as specified under part C of schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 and disclosed 
in the notes to accounts. The residual values is not more than s% of the original cost of assets. 

Property plant and equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to 'f.sooo/- are fully 
depreciated, by keeping Re. 1 as token value for identification. However, Mobile phones provided to 

~ employees are charged to statement of profit and loss irrespective of its value. 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are 
included in profit or loss within other gains/Closses). 

2.2.3. Impairment of non-financial assets 

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable 
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). 

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated 
recoverable amount of the asset. 
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Ireon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

2.2.4. Revenue Recognition 

The Company derives revenues primarily from the Service Concession Arrangement comprising the 
construction and operation & maintenance services pertaining to an infrastructure (Road) on Hybrid 
Annuity Mode. 

i. Revenue from Service Concession Arrangement 

The Company's contracts with the Customers for the construction and operation & maintenance services 
under the Service Concession Arrangement (SCA) are accounted for as a single performance obligation 
as contract is negotiated as a package' with a single commercial objective and involves complex 
integration of construction and maintenance services. 

Revenue is recognized over the time using input method (i.e., percentage-of-completion method) which 
is consistent with the transfer of control to the customer because there is a direct relationship between 
the Company's effort (i.e., cost incurred) and the transfer of service to the customer. Under input method, 
contract revenue is recognized as revenue by reference to the stage of completion as at the reporting date. 
The stage of completion is measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total 
estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation. However, where the Company is not be able to 
reasonably measure the outcome of a performance obligation, but the Company expects to recover the 
costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation, the Company recognises revenue only to the 
extent of the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the 
performance obligation. A cumulative catch-up adjustment would be recognized in the period in which 
the entity is able to reasonably measure its progress. Changes to total estimated contract costs, if any, are 
recognised in the period in which they are determined as assessed at the contract level. 

Any expected losses on contracts in progress are charged to statement to profit & Loss, in total, in the 
period the losses are identified. 

Revenue is measured at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and is 
adjusted for variable considerations. Variability in the transaction price arises primarily due to liquidated 
damages, price variation clauses, incentives, change in law etc. The Company recognizes revenue for 
variable consideration when it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount cumulative revenue 
recognized will not occur. The company estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable 
consideration using most likely amount method. Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied 
performance obligation are recognized as revenue, or as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which 
the transaction price changes. 

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the 
contract scope or contract price. The accountiIl:g for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether 
the services added to the existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling 
price. Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch-up basis, while those 
that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if additional services are 
priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of existing contract and creation of a new 
contract if not priced at the standalone selling price. 
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:Jii. 

Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Contract balances 

Contract assets 
If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays 
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that 
is conditional. The portion of the payments retained by the customer until final contract settlement is 
not considered a significant financing component since it is usually intended to provide customer with 
a form of security for Company's remaining performance as specified under the contract, which is 
consistent with the industry practice. 

Trade receivables 
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., 
only the passage oftirne is required before payment of the consideration is due). Trade receivab1e are 
recognized initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. 
The Company hold the trade receivable with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and 
therefore measure them subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less 
loss allowance. 

Contract liabilities 
If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a 
contract liability is recognized when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). 
Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. 

Financial Assets Under Service Concession Arrangements (Appendix C to Ind AS 115 -
Revenue from Contracts with Customers) 

The Company recognize a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right to 
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor ("NHAl") for the 
construction services and Operation & Maintenance services. 

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value and subsequently at amortized cost using the 
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. 

Other income 

Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method. 

All other income is accounted on accrual basis when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the 
amount that will be received. 

2.2.5. Borrowing cost 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds and are charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are 
incurred except when it meets the criteria for capitalization as part of qualifying assets as per Ind AS 
23· 
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Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

2.2.6. Taxes 

Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred income tax. 

i. Current income Tax 

ii. 
} 

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period and is computed 
in accordance with relevant tax regulations. 

Current income tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss. Management periodically evaluates 
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are 
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset 
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting 
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow 
the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. 

2.2.7. Employee Benefits 

i. 

:J 

Short Term Employee Benefits 

Employee benefits such as salaries and wages, short term compensated absences, and Performance 
Related Pay (PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as 
short-term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement 
of profit and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services. 

ii. Post-employment benefits & other Long Term Employee Benefits 

The employees of the Company are on deputation from Ircon International Limited, Holding Company. 
The post employee benefits & other long term employee benefits include gratuity, provident fund, post­
retirement medical facility, pension, leave encashment and leave travel concession. 

As per arrangement with the Ircon International Limited, Holding Company, the cost in relation to 
post employee & other long term Employee Benefits will be reimbursed to the holding Company on the 
basis of fixed contribution based on basic pay and dearness allowance for the period of services 
rendered in the Company. 
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Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 
Notes to f"mancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

The company's liability with respect to the long term employee benefit is limited to the extent of fixed 
contribution to be paid to the holding company. Actual settlement of the long term employee liability 
will be the responsibility of holding company. 

The Contractual employees of the Company are not eligible for post employee benefits & other long 
term employee benefits. 

2.2.8. Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes 
unrestricted cash and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months and less that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change 
in value. 

:{"')9. Contingent liabilities & contingent ass~ts 

Contingent liabilities 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present obligations that may 
but probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of 
such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is possible obligation or a present obligation 
in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no 
provision or disclosure is made. 

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

Contingent assets 

Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is 
probable. 

2:)10. Leases 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for 
consideration. 

Company as a lessee 

Short Term leases 

The company has elected not to recognize ROU and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a 
lease term of twelve months or less. The company recognises lease payments associated with these 
leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

2.2.11. Financial instruments 

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the 

~~ / C[i)~ c· "v[Jo .,. \ 

:~: ~ 0, 
( ~ ~ 

-, 
,'.., -~ 

.1 
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Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

contractual provisions of the instrument. 

i. Financial assets 

a) Initial recognition and measurement .. 
All financial assets (excluding trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing 
component, being measured at transaction price) are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset. Transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed 
in statement of profit and loss. 

b) Subsequent measurement 
Subsequent measurement of financial asset depends on the Company business model for managing the 
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its financial asset as: 

Financial assets at amortized cost 
After initial measurement, the financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows 
where those cash flow represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal 
amount outstanding are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income. 

Impairment of financial assets 
The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for recognizing impairment loss on 
financial assets measured at amortized cost, trade receivables, and other contractual rights to receive 
cash or other financial asset. 
For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company follows 'simplified approach' and measures the 
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company 
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. 
If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is u$ed to provide for impairment loss. 

c) DE recognition of financial assets 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset, and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition 
under Ind AS 109. 

The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received / receivable is 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

ii. Financialliabilities 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables and other financial 
liabilities. 
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b) Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

After initial recognition, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using the EIR (Effective Interest Rate) method. Amortized cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 
and loss. 

c) Derecognition oftmancialliabilities 

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet 
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

2.2.12. Fair value measurement 

The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured, are disclosed in the financial statements. 
Such assets and liabilities are categorised within the level 3 (Valuation techniques for which the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable) of fair value hierarchy. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic 
best interest. 

2.2.13. Earnings Per Share 

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity 
shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the period. 

In determining diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and 
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all 
dilutive potential equity shares. 

2.2.14. Prior Period Adjustment 

Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial and 
adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed 0.50% 
of total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company. 

2.2.15. Significant accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of Standalone Financial Statements requires the management to make judgements, 
accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets 
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and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates 
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or 
liabilities affected in future periods. 

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, 
and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning 
out to be different than those originally assessed. 

Significant areas of estimation and judgements as stated in the respective accounting policies that have 
the most significant effect on the financial statements are as follows: 

i. Allowances for uncollected trade receivables 

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by appropriate 
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivable's balances and 
historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems not be 
collectible. 

ii. Contingencies 

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims 
against the company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based on all 
available facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably and such 
obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there can be no 
assurance of the final outcome of legal proceedings in which the company is involved. it is not expected 
that such contingencies will have material effect on its financial position of probability. 

iii. Impairment of financial assets 

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and 
expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs 
to the impairment calculation, based on the company's past history, credit risk, existing market 
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

,)v. Taxes 

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, 
and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business differences arising 
between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could 
necessitate future adjustments that will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and 
liabilities in the period in which such determination is made. The company establishes provisions, 
based on reasonable estimates. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is 
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely 
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

v. Impairment of non-financial assets 
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The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 
Determining the recoverable amount of the assets is judgmental and involves the use of significant 
estimates and assumptions. The estimates are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable, but 
which are inherently uncertain and unpredictable and do not reflect unanticipated events and 
circumstances that may occur. 

vi. Revenue recognition 

The company's revenue recognition policy, which is set out in Note 2.2-4, is central to how the company 
values the work it has carried out in each financial year. 

These policies require forecasts to be made of the outcomes of Contracts, which require, assessments 
and judgements to be made on changes in scope of work and claims and variations. 

The Company has incorporated significant judgements over contractual entitlements for long term 
project. The range of potential outcomes could result in a materially positive or negative change to 
underlying profitability and cash flow. 

Estimates are also required with respect to the below mentioned aspects of the contract: 
• Determination of stage of completion 
• Estimation of project completion date 
• Provisions for foreseeable loses 
• Estimated total revenues and estimated total costs to completion, including claims and variations. 

These are reviewed at each reporting date and adjust to reflect the current best estimates. 
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3 P roperty, PI ant an dE i :qu pment 
Particulars 
Gross Car!}'ingAmount {At Cost} 
As at 01st April 2023 
Additions 
Disposals/Adjustments 
Transfer to Asset held for sale 
Exchanqe Gain/ Loss 
As at 31st March 2024 

As at 01st April 2024 
Additions 
Disposals/Adjustments 
Transfer to Asset held for sale 
Exchanqe Gain/ Loss 
As at 31st March 2025 

Depreciation and Impairment 
As at 01st April 2023 
Depreciation charge for the year 
Impairment 
Disposals/Adjustments 
Transfer to Asset held for sale 
Exchanoe Gain/ Loss 
As at 31st March 2024 

As at 01st April 2024 
Depreciation charge for the year 
Impairment 
Disposals/Adjustments 
Transfer to Asset held for sale 
Exchange Gain/ Loss 
As at 31st March 2025 

Net book value 
As at 31st March 2025 
As at 31st March 2024 

Note: 

Computers Total 

- · 
0.50 0.50 

- · 
- -
- -

0.50 0.50 

0.50 0.50 
0.80 0.80 

- · 
- -
- · 

1.30 1.30 

- -
0.07 0.07 

. -
- -
. -
- · 

0.07 0.07 

0.07 0.07 
0.31 0.31 

- . 
- -
- -
- -

0.38 0.38 

0.92 0.92 
0.43 0.43 

(i) Depreciation is provided based on useful life of assets which is in line with the useful life prescribed in 
schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 and disclosed as under: 

Asset Class Useful life 
adopted as per 
Schedule II (in 

years) 
Computer 3 

(ii) There is no class of assets where the Company uses different useful life than those prescribed in 
Schedule II of the ComDanies Act. 2013. 
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4. Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 

A) The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31st March 2025 and y.esr ended 31st March 2024 are: -

Particulars For the year ended 
31.03.2025 

Current income tax 
Current income tax charge 113.94 
Tax adjustment of earlier years 1,21 
Deferred tax 
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 0.31 

Income tax expense reported in the statement of Profit and Loss 115.46 

For the year ended 
31.03.2024 

138.99 
-

0.28 

139.27 

B) The reconciliation oftax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024: 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

1. Profill(Loss) before tax 446,59 553.33 
2, Corporate tax rate as per Income tax Act, 1961 25,17% 25,17% 
3, Tax on accounting profit 112.40 139,26 
4. Effect of tax adjustments 
(i) Tax on expenses: 

(a) Pre-incorporation expenses (0,27) (0,26) 
(b) Non Deductable expenses 1,85 0.01 
(c) Depreciation impact (0,04) (0,01) 
(d) Brought Forward Losses - (0,01) 
(e) Earlier year tax adjustment 1.21 -

(ii) Timing differences 
(a) Deferred tax expenses 1 (income) 0,31 0,28 

Total effect of tax adjustments 3.06 0.01 
5. Income tax expense reJlorted in the statement of profit and loss (3+4) 115.46 139.27 
6. Effective tax rate 6 = 5/1 25.85% 25.17% 

C) Component of deferred tax assets and (liabilities) in Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss 
Particulars 

Statements of Profit and Statements of Profit and 
Loss 

Balance Sheet 
Loss 

Balance Sheet 

31·Mar·25 31·Mar·25 31·Mar·24 31·Mar·24 
Pre-incorporation expense 0,27 - 0,27 0.27 
Difference in Book depreciation and Income tax 
depreciation 0,04 (0.05) 0,01 (0,01) 
Carry forward losses - - - -

Net deferred tax Assets/(Liabilities) 0.31 (0.05) 0.28 0.26 

0) Reflected in the Balance Sheet as follows: 
Particulars 

As at As at 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Deferred tax assets - 0,27 
Deferred tax liabilities (0,05) (0,01) 

Deferred Tax Assetsl(Liabilities) (Net) (0.05) 0.26 
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E) Reconciliation of deferred tax (liabilities)/assets: 

As at 31 03 2025 
Particulars Balance Recognised in 

As at 01 st April 2024 Statement of Profit and 
(Net) Loss 

Pre-incorporation expense 0.27 (0.27) 
Difference in Book depreciation and Income tax 
depreciation (0.01) (0.04) 
Carry forward losses - -

Net deferred tax Assets/(Liabilities) 0.26 (0.31) 

As at 31 03 2024 
Particulars Balance Recognised in 

As at 1 st April 2023 Statement of Profit and 
(Net) Loss 

Pre-incorporation expense 0.54 (0.27) 
Difference in Book depreciation and Income tax 
depreciation - (0.01) 
Carry forward losses - -

Net deferred tax Assets/(Liabilitiesl 0.54 (0.28 

Recognised in OCI Balance 
As at 31 st March 2025 

(Net) 

-

(0 .05) 
-

(0.05) 

Recognised in OCI Balance 
As at 31st March 2024 

(Net) 

0.27 

(0.01) 
- -

- 0.26 
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5 other Non-Current Financial Assets 
Particulars 

(Unsecured and considered good) 
Security Deposit 
Contract Assets 
-receivable under SeA 

Total 

6 Current Assets - Financial Assets 

6.1 Trade Receivables 

Particulars 

Secured considered good 
Unsecured considered good 
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 
Trade receivables-credit impaired 

Less: Impairment allowance for doubtful trade receivables 
Total 

Note: 

As at 
31st March 2025 

-

21,883.43 

21,883.43 

As at 
31 st March 2025 

-
795.65 

-
-

795.65 
-

795.65 

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule for the year ended as at 31 st March 2025 and 31st March 2024 
F th d d 31 t M h 2025 or eyear en e s arc 
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Outstanding for the year ended March 31st, 2025 from the due 

Less than 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 
6 months -1 year 

Undisputed Trade receivables -
734.35 61.30 considered good - - - -

Undisputed Trade Receivables 
- which have significant - - - - - - -
increase in credit risk 
Undisputed Trade Receivables 
- credit impaired - - - - - - -

Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered good - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increase - - - - - -
in credit risk 
Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - - - -

- - 734.35 - 61.30 -
Less: Impairment Allowance - - - - - - -
Total . . 734.35 - 61.30 -

F th d d 31 M h 2 or e year en e st arc 20 4 
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Outstanding for the vear ended March 31st, 2024 from the due 

Less than 6 months 1·2 years 2·3 years More than 3 years 
6 months ·1 year 

Undisputed Trade receivables -
1,462.75 considered good - - - - - -

Undisputed Trade Receivables 
- which have significant 
increase in credit risk - - - - - - -

Undisputed Trade Receivables 
- credit impaired - - - . . - -
Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered good - - - - - - -

-&. /\S3 
v 0C' 

~ ~ 
"" eil ( ~R(JJ 

C1. ". , 
r~, 

, '1 

As at 
31st March, 2024 

-

19,318.73 

19,318.73 

As at 
31st March, 2Q24 

-
1,462.75 

-
-

1,462.75 
-

1,462.75 

Total 

795.65 

-

-

-

-

795.65 

795.65 

Total 

1,462.75 

. 

-

. 
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Oisputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increase - - - -
in credit risk 
Disputed Trade Receivables -

· - - -credit impaired 
· . 1,462.75 . 

Less: Impairment Allowance · - . -
Total · . 1,462.75 . 

6.2 C . IA urrent lnanCla ssets· as an as ;qulva ents C h dC hE . I 

Particulars 

Balances with banks: 
Earmarked Funds' 

-In current accounts' 
-In Escrow accounts' 
- Flexi Accounts" 
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months' 

Total 

- - - -

· - · 
. · · 1,462.75 
- - · · 
. · · 1,462.75 

As at As at 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

5.59 2.97 
1.79 0.78 

341.00 719.00 
1,600.00 7,900.00 

1,948.38 8,622.75 
'Earmarked funds are restncted primarily on account of balance held for use In project as required In the Service Concession Agreement 

) entered by the company with the National Highway Authority of India Dated 20.01.2020. 

6.3 Current Assets· Other Financial Assets 

Particulars 

Contract Assets: 
Contract Asset under SCA-Current 

Money Withheld by Client" 
Inlt Receivable from Bank FDR 

Total 
, As per the management opinion, such amount is recoverable from client. 

7 CurrentTax Assets Net 

Particulars 

Taxes Paid including TDS and Advance Tax (Net of provision for tax) 

Total 

Other Current Assets 

Particulars 

(Unsecured and considered good) 
Advances Recoverable from 
- Goods & Services Tax (GST) 
- Building cess receivable 
Advances to 
- Contractors (Holding Co)* 
• Others 
Prepaid Expenses 

Total 
"It mcludes Interest bearmg advance@ 581 MCLR+1% of Rs.334.80 Lakh (2023·24 Rs.334.80 Lakh) 

As at As at 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

3,690.31 · 

1,485.78 1,083.56 
8.30 2.58 

5,184.39 1,086.14 

As at As at 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

59.42 98.82 

59.42 98.82 

As at As at 
31st March, 2025 31st March. 2024 

4,757.62 3,691.69 
-

2,757.34 701 .83 
· -

67.61 50.84 

7.582.57 4,444.36 
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9 

10 

EQuity Share Capital 
As at As at 

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Authorised Share Capital 
40,00,000 (FY 2023-24: 40,00,000) equity shares of RS.l 0/- each 400.00 400.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares 
50,000 (FY 2023-24: 50000) equity shares of Rs.1 0/- each 5.00 5_00 

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 5.00 5.00 

(a) Promoter's sharaholdlng 
Particulars Shares held by Promoter at the end of the year % change during 

Promoter Name No. of shares % of total shares Ihe period 
As al 31 sl March, 2025 Ircon International Limited 50,000 100% 

Outstanding at Ihe end afthe period 50000 100% 
As at 31 st March, 2024 Ircon International Limited 50,000 100% 

Oulstandlng althe end of Ihe pariod 50000 100% 

(b) Reconciliation oflhe shares outslanding althe beginning and althe end of the reporting period 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As alllst March, 21124 

Altha beginning ofthe period 
Issued during the period 
Outstanding at the end of the period 

(c) Termsl rights attached to equity shares 
(i) Voting 

No, of Shares 
50,000.00 

. 
50,000.00 

Amount in Lal<hs No, of Sl1ares 
5.00 50,000.00 

5.00 50,000.00 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 1 a per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. 
(ii) Liquidation 

Amount in Lakhs 
5.00 . 
5.00 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The 
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by Ihe shareholders. 
(iii) Dividend 
The dividend proposed by the Board of Direclors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

d) Details of shareholders h(lldlng more than 5% shares in Ihe Company: 
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31 sl March, 2024 

No. of Shares % holding in the class No. of Shares % holding in the 
class 

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 
50000 100% 50000 100% Ircon International Limited and its nominees' 

600 equIty shares hold by nommee shareholders on behalf of tho holding company. 
As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholdersl members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above 
shareholding represents legal ownerships of shares. 

(e) Holding Company "Mis Ircon Inlernalional Limited" is public sector construclion company, holding 100% Equity Share of Ihe company. 

(f) for the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared: 
(i) No shares have been allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to contracl(s) without payment being received in cash, 
(ii) No shares have been allotted as fully paid-up by way of bonus shares and, 
(iii) No shares have been bought back. 

OtherEllulty 
Asat Particutars 

31 st March, 2025 
Retained Earnings 1,112.47 
Quasi Eouity (Loan From lreon) 8,835.00 
Total 9,947.47 

As at 
31st March, 2024 

781.34 
8,835.00 
9,616.34 

i) Movement as per below: 
R • dE etalne arn1ngs 

Particulars As at As at 
31 st March, 2025 31 st March, 2024 

Opening Balance 781.34 367.28 
Transfer from surplus in statement of profit and loss 331.13 414.06 
ClosinQ Balance 1112.47 781.34 

Quasi Equity (Loan From Ircon) 

Particulars As at As al 
31s1 March 2025 315/ March 2024 

Opening Balance B,8J5.00 7,1 35.00 
Add: Rocelpl of Quasi EQuity 1,700.00 
Closing Balance 8,835.00 8,835.00 
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ii) Nature and Purpose: 
Retained Earnings 
Retained Eamings represents the undistributed profits of the Company. 
Quasi Equity 
Quasi Equity represents equity contribution from the Holding Company in fonm of Interest free loan. The interest free loan/quasi equity shall be repayable at the end of the project and are 
defined as "Equity" in the concession agreement with NHAI. Accordingly, these are considered to be in the nature of equity instruments. 

11 N on Current Financial Lla~i1Itie s · BOlTowlnns 
As at As at Particulars 

31 st March 2025 31st March, 2024 

Term Loan Secured 
• From Banks 19,651.20 19,651.20 

Total 19,651.20 19,651.20 

• As on the reporting date there is no default in the servicing of the tenm loan or the interest thereto. Further, the company has registered the charge on its assets with the Registrar of 
Companies as required under the loan sanction and as per the provisions of Companies Act 2013. Also companies has not required any quarterly return / statements of asset as the same 
was not required by bank. 

Sanctioned Amount:· The limits sanctioned for the project was Rs. 309.68 ( In Crores) w,e.! sanctioned letter received on 12.05.2021 from Indian Overseas Bank out of which amount of Rs. 
196.512 Crores are disbursed from the sanctioned amount. 

Repayment terms: The loan is repayable in 21 structured half yearly instalments in 10.5 years which shall commence after 6 months (moratorium) from the date of Commissioning (COD). 

Rate ol lntorest: Interest rate shall be on one month MCLR (8.50%) -+0.15% Spread i.e 8.65% p.a subject to change based on MCLR. 
Details of security: 
1) Term Loan is backed by unconditional & irrevocable corporate guarantee of the holding company M/s Ircon International Limited 
2) The loan is further secured by 
a) Exclusive charges by way of hypothecation of all Property, Plant and EquipmenV movable assets of the company 
b) Exclusive charge on the project's book debts, operating cash flows, receivables, commission, revenues of whatsoever nature and wherever arising, present and future intangibles, 

goodwill, uncalled capital (Present and future); 
c)Exdusive charge on projects bank account, including but not limited to the escrow account ,where all cash inflows from the project shall be deposited and all proceeds shall be utilised in a 
manner and priority to be decided by the bank! investors 
d) Assignment of all company's rights and interest under all the agreements related to project, letter of credit(if any), and guarantee and performance bond provided by any party for any 

contract related to the project in favour of lender. 

12 Current Liabilities· Financial Liabilities 

12.1 Current Liabilities· TtlIde Payablee 

Particulars As at As at 
31st March 2025 31 st March, 2024 

(a) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 2.64 1.30 
(b) Other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
. Contractor & Suppliers 0.46 5964 
• Related Parties 1,819.44 2,471 .34 

Total 1822.54 2,532.28 
Notes. -
a) Disclosures as required under Companies Act, 2013/ Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) are provided in Note 33. 

b) The Company has recognized expenses for contruction of road work services received during the year for which invoices were not received as on the balance 
sheet date. Based on the terms of engagement and service delivery, a liability of f773.17 Lakh (PY: f1858.95 Lakh) has been accrued under trade payables as althe 
reporting date. 

Trade payables Ageing Schedule forthe year ended as at 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024 

Particulars Outstandi!1S.Jor the vear anded as at 31 5t March. 2025 from the due dale of payment 
Un billed Not due 

Less than 1 year 1·2 years 2·3 years More than 3 years 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 
and small enterprises 2.64 . - . 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other 
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 770.53 61.30 988.07 

Particulars Outstanding for thavear en dod BS at 31 st March 2024 from the due date of payment 
Unbitled Not due 

Less than 1 year 1·2 years 2·3 years More than 3 years 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 1,30 
and small enterprises 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other 1,857.65 673.33 
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Total 

2.64 

1,819.90 

Total 

1.30 

2,530.98 
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12.2 Current liabilities Other Financial Liabilities 

Particulars 

Unsecured 
Payable to Holding Company 
Money withheld of holding company 
Money withheld from Contractors 
Interest payable on loan from banks 
Interest payable on mobilisation advance 
Other payable (including staff payable) 

Total 

13 Other Curient LlablliUes 

Particulars 

Contract Liabilities 
• Mobilsation advance from client 
. Advances from client 

Others 
Statutory dues 
CSR to be Spent on other than Ongoing project 

Total 

14 Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 

Particulars 

Provision for Income tax (Net of Advance tax & TDS) 

Total 

15.1 Reve'nue from operations 
Particulars 

Contract revenue under SCA 

Total 

15.2 Other Income 
Particulars 

Interest Income: 
Interest on advances to holding company 
Interest on FDR 
Interest on Income tax refund 
Miscellaneous Income 

Total 

16 Project ~penses 
Particulars 

Work Expenses 
Insurance expenses 
Inspection, Geo Techincallnvestigation & Survey Exp. Etc 
Other Work Expenses 

Total 

17 E b fi mployee ene Its expanses 
Particulars 

Salary & Wages' 
Contribulion to Provident and other Funds 
Retirement Benefits" 

Total . Includes salaries paid to employees on Deputation from Holding Company 

As at 
31st March. 2025 

35.81 
1,314.21 

451 .80 

1,801.82 

As at 
31 st March 2025 

1,092.65 
2,763.64 

363.43 
6,96 

4,226.68 

As at 
31st March 2025 

. 

For the year ended 
31 .03.2025 

11,789.12 

11.789.12 

For the year ended 
31.03.2025 

33.04 
370.29 

6.57 

409.90 

For the year ended 
31.03.2025 

6,375,59 
84.83 
25.80 

3,350.46 

9836.68 

For the year ended 
31.03.2025 

106.82 
7.43 

16.71 

13QJl6 

.. Represent reimbursement of Employer Contribution to Provident Fund on Employees under Deputation. 

As at 
31 st Marcb 2024 

15.38 
567.71 

-

383.38 

966.47 

As at 
31st March 2024 

1,238.96 
701.83 

322.16 

2,262.95 

As at 
31st March 2024 

. 

For the year ended 
31.03.2024 

24,387.98 

24387.98 

For the year ended 
31.03.2024 

64.55 
52.16 
9.86 

126.57 

For the year ended 
31.03.2024 

19,939.72 
61.42 

10614 
3,017.92 

23,125.20 

For the year ended 
31.03.2024 

91 .50 
6.35 

14.19 

112.04 
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18 Finance Cost 
Particulars 

Intarest Expense 
- Tenn Loan 
- Mobilisation advances 

Interest on Government Dues 
Other Borrowing Cost 

-Bank Guarantee and other charges 

Total 

19 0 h Ex t er Kpenses 
Particulars 

Printing & Stationary expenses 
Legal & Professional charges 
Auditor Remuneration 
Vehicle Operation and Maintenance 
Rent 
Rates and Taxes 
Travelling & Conveyance 
Bank charges and commission 
Office and Other expenses 
Loss on sale of Assets 
Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer note no 34) 
Miscellaneous Expenses 

Total 

(i) P aymen tt th Ad' 0 e u Itors 
Particulars 

Payment to the auditor's for 
- Statutory Audit Fee 
- Tax Audit Fee 
- Fee for Quarterly limited review 
- Certification 
- Reimbursement of expenses 

Total 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 .03.2025 31 .03.2024 

1,677.29 550.14 
76.02 156.55 

0.37 0.03 

1.67 3.82 

1755_35 710.54 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

0.23 0.11 
11.84 3.14 
1.98 1.47 
0.12 
4.86 4.86 
-

0.16 0.62 
2.63 2.28 

696 
0.35 0.89 

29.13 13.37 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

LOO 0.75 
0.31 0.23 
0 55 0.43 
0.12 

0.07 

1.98 1.48 

64



Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited 
CIN:·U45309DL2020GOI374941 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

20 Disclosure as per Ind AS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' 
The amount of exchange differences (net) creditedldebited to the statement of profit and loss is Nil (FY 2023-24: Nil). 

21 Disclosure as per Ind AS 19 on Employee benefits 
a. The employees in Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited are posted on deputation basis from Ircon International Limited (Holding Company). 

b. In terms of accounting policy of the Company (Note No. 2.2.7) and arrangement with the Holding Company, the provision for Retirement Benefits such as 
provident fund, pension, gratuity, post retirement medical benefits, Leaves and other terminal benefits of nominated employees is being made by Holding 
company in terms of Ind AS-19. The amount paid or payable towards provident fund, pension, gratuity, post retirement medical benefits, Leaves and other 
terminal benefits to the holding company are included in "Employee Benefit Expenses" (Note 17). 

c. Provident Fund Contribution of the employees on nominationlsecondment have been regularly deposited by the holding company with its P.F Trust. 

22 Related Party Disclosures 
Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 24 'Related Party Disclosures' are as under: 

a) List of Related Parties 
C) (i) Holding company 

Ircon International Limited 
(ii) Non Executive Directors 

Name 
Shri Masood Ahmad Najar( W.e.f 24/12/2020) 
Shri Parag Verma (W.eJ 17102/2021) 
Shri Yogesh Kumar Mishra( W.eJ 01/0212024) 
Shri Mugunthan Boju Gowda (W.eJ 24/12/2020 to 31/1212024) 
Shri Alin Roy Choudhury (W.eJ 01/01/2025) 

(iii) Key Management Personnel (KMP) 

Name 
Shri Kashinath (W.eJ 29/11/2023) 
Shri Alin Roy Choudhury (W.eJ 01/07/2021 to 22/04/2024) 
Ms. Yamini Sahib (W.eJ 22/04/2024) 
Shri Ankit Jain (W.eJ 17/03/2021) 

Desianation 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 

Desianation 
Chief Executive Officer 
Chief Financial Officer 
Chief Financial Officer 
Company Secretary 

Remuneration to Key Management Personnel : Company had Part-time and Non Executive Directors during the financial year 2024-25 and 2023-24, 
nominated on the Board by the Holding Company, do not draw any remuneration from the Company. No sitting fee is paid to Part- time and Non Executive 
Directors. 

b) Transactions with other related parties are as follows: (Rs. ln Lakhs) 

Nature of transaction Name of related party Nature of relationship 
For the year ended For the year ended 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
1) Reimbursement expenses 61.50 50.43 
2) Rent Expense (inclusive of GST) 4.86 4.86 
3) Investment in Equity Shares - -
4) Works Contract Ircon International Limited Holding Company 9,726.06 22,957.64 
5) Loan from holding company- Quasi Equity - 1,700.00 
6) Advance given to Holding Co - 2,933.99 
7) Interest Income on advance 33.04 64.49 
8) Remuneration under deputation Shri Deepak Kumar Garg KMP - 13.64 

Shri Kashinath KMP 35.97 12.09 
Shri Alin Roy Choudhury KMP - 44.74 
Shri Ankit Jain KMP 21.23 17.96 
Ms.Yamini Sahib KMP 48.56 -

I~" 
-=-
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) 

c) Outstanding balances with the related parties are as follows: (Rs. In Lakh~ 
Nature of transaction Name of related party Nature of relationship As at As at 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 
Trade Payable 1,819.44 2,471 .34 
Other Payable to holding company 35.81 15.38 
Money withheld from contractor 

Ircon International Limited Holding Company 
1,314.21 567.71 

Equity Share Capital (Including Quasi equity) 8,840.00 8,840.00 

Outstanding Moblization advance to Holding Co 2,757.34 701 .83 

d) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 
(i) Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. 

(ii) Balances payable of related parties at the reporting date are unsecured and settlement occurs through banking transactions. These balances are interest 
free except advance to holding company on which interest is charged at rate of average of one year SBI MCLR +1 .00%. 

(iii) The Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial 
year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. 

23 Earnings per share (EPS) 

Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 'Earnings per share' 

(a) Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the year. 

(b) Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to the equity holders after considering the effect of dilution by weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive 
potential equity shares into equity shares. 

(i) Basic and diluted earnings per share (In Rs.) 
Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
Profit attributable to Equity holders (Rs. in lakhs) (ii) 331.13 414.06 
No.of equity shares 50,000.00 50,000,00 
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic and Diluted EPS (In Num (iii) 50,000.00 50,000.00 
Earnings per share (Basic) 662.26 828.12 
Earnings per share (Diluted) 662.26 828.12 
Face value per share 10.00 10.00 

(ii) Profit attributable to equity shareholders (used as numerator) (Rs. in lakhs) 
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

31 .03.2025 31.03.2024 
Profit for the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss 331.13 414.06 
Profit attributable to Equity holders of the company used for computing EPS 331.13 414.06 

(iii) Weighted average number of equity shares (used as denominator) (Nos.) 
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
Opening balance of issued equity shares 50,000.00 50,000.00 
Equity shares issued during the period - -
Equity shares outstanding as on date 50,000.00 50,000.00 
Weighted average number of equity shares for computing Basic EPS 50,000.00 50,000.00 
Dilution Effect: 
Add: Weighted average numbers of potential equity shares outstanding during the year - -
Weighted average number of equity shares for computina Diluted EPS 50,000.00 50 000.00 
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24 Impairment 01 Asoots 
During the period, Company has carried out assessment on impairment of individual assets by working out the recoverable amount based on lower of the nel realizable value and carrying cost in terms of 
Ind AS 36, "Impainnent of Assets" notified under section lJJ of the companies Ac~ 2013 read wilh Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule., 2015 and Companies (Indian 
accounling s1Bndards) Amendment Rules 2016 Accordingly, impainnent loss 01 Nil (FY 2023·24: NiQ has been provided for." 

2S Provision, Contingencies Bnd Commitments 
(a) Provision. 

Provisions has been made during the year in accordance with Ind AS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets' 

(b) ConUngent lIabiliUes 
No Claims against the Company acknowledged as debts as on the reporting date as per Ind AS 37 'Provisions, Contingenlliabilities and ContingenL Assets'. 

(c) ConUngent assets 
No claims in favour of the company accounted as receivab~ as on the reporting date as per Ind AS 37 'PrO'llisions, ContingenL liabilities and Contingent Assets'. 

(d) Commitments 
Capital: Estimated amount 01 con~acts remaining to be execuled on capital account (Net of advance) and not provided for is Nil (FY 2024·25: Nil). 
Other. Con~actor EPC War!< ",maining for execution on March 31s~ 2025 RS.44876 Lakh (FY 2023·24: Rs 65716 Lakh) 

2& Segment Reporting 
0) Generallnlomnatlon 

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available which is being evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker 
(CODM) in deciding how to allocale resourt:es and assessing performance. The Board of Directors of the Company is the Chiel Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Company is engaged in 
the business of infrastructure development in the state of Haryana and the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) monitors the operating results of the business as a single segmen~ hence no 
separate sag"",nt needs to be disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108. 

Oil Infomnation about geographical infomnnon 
As the Company operates in a single geographical segment i e India, hence no separate geographical segment is disclosed. 

(iii) Information about major customer 
During the year ended March 31 st, 2025, Revenue of Rs. 11789.12 Lakhs (March 31sl, 2024 Rs. 24387.98 Lakhs) are derived Irom a single customer i e, NHAI which is more than 10% of the 
Company's toLaI revenue. 

27 Financial Risk Management 
The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The 
Company's principal financial assets include Trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets~ The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 
Credit risk, liquidity risk and Mar1<et risk. This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each oIlhe above risks, Ihe Company's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and 
managing risk. 

Risk Management Framework 
The Company's activities make it susceptible to various risks. The Company has taken adequate measures to address such concems by developing adequate systems and practices. The Board of 
Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framewor1<, 

a) Credit Risk 

(I) 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial inslrument fails to meet its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Company~ 

Credit risk arises principally from trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets. The Company's exposure and credit ratings of its counterpartias are continously 
monitored by the management. 

Cash and cash eqUivalents 
The cash and cash equivalenls are held in public sector banks with strong credit ratings. 
Trade R.ed.ables gnd otharHnand.1 IISsets 
Tha Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the characteristics of the customer. The demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which 
the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment The Company derives revenue primarliy from the Construction of highways and other financial assets primarily relates to 
the unbilled revenue under Service Concession Arrangement (SCA) and money witheld by client The credit risk arising from these trade receivables and other financial assets is limited because 
Ihe counlsrp~ is National Highways Authority of India (NHAI), an autonomous agency of Govemment of India, with capacity to meet the obligations and therefore, the risk of defaull is very 
neg~gible or Nil. 

Expo.ure to crodlt~.k IRs. In L.kh. 
Partlcula .. Jl·Mar·25 J1·Mar·24 

Financial Assets for which allowance is measured using lif.time expected credit loss as per simplified approach 
Tradle Receivables 79565 1,462.75 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,946,38 8,622,75 
Other Financial Assets 27.067.82 20404.87 

(II) Provision loraxpoc:tod .redltlo .... 
No impainnent loss has been recognised during the reporting period. 

011) S4mmat'Y of 101. aUoWlUlC8 mo .. ured u,lnA 'Impllfied appro.chl • (110,1. lakhsj 
ParUcular. Jl·Mar·25 31·M.r·24 
Opening Allowances 
Provided during the year . 
Utilization during the year 
Amount wriltlln off 
Closing Allowance. 

b) liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its frnancialliabiliUes that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset The 
Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and slressed conditions, 
without incurring unacceptable lossas or risking damage to the Company's reputation, Liquidity position ollhe Company is reviewed on a regular basis by the Board of Directors and appropriate 
decisions are taken according to the siluation. 

Tho tabl. bolow proVid ... d,WI"ogardlng Ih. ,lgnin.ontfinAnd.lllabllities as at JIlt M"",h 2Q<S & 31&1 Miren 2024 (R •• ln Lokho) 
Partlcula .. Aut 31st March 2025 

I.o!. than 1 Y .... 1·2Vears 2 vears and abDVO 

Borrowirl!ls 3.1~ I 19,648.10 
T .. de Pavables 1,822.54 
Other Financial Liabilities 180t82 
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PartkulaFS 

i30m>Win9' 
Trade Payables 
Olher FlnonoloJ Uablfft19s 

(R .. ln L. kh.) 
As at 31 .tM. ",h 2024 

Less than 1 Year 1·2 Years 2 years and above 
19.651.20 

2.53228 
966.47 

Rep.v_ t Iwms Tn. loan IS repayable In 21 .lruotured hll lf yea~y Instalments In 10.5 years which shall commence alier~ mcnths (mcratonum) from the date of CommissIoning (COD). 

c) Mai1lot risk 
M!!r1I:o t nu 1$ the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rales will ... rrecl tl1e Company's income. The objective of mar1o;et risk managQffi£lht s La manage 
amf can!1ol market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The Board of DI'GCI~ Is responsible for setting up of policies and procedures to manage market risks 
oI~Ih"Co"",""Y. 

(i) Foreign Curroncy risk 
The funaoonal currency of the Company is Indian Rupees, The Company is not exposed Lo any foreign currency risk. 

(II) Intor •• t ralo risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the rair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Financial instruments affected by interest 
ra1e ~.k Inaludes doposits with banks & borrowing from banI!. Interest rate risk on deposits with banks are very low as inlerest rate is fixed for the pe<lod of financial instrumenls. Tho Company is 
aXp¢s(Id to interest rate risk arising mainly rrom non-cwmnl borrowings with floating interest rata because the cash nows associated with rloa~ng raie borrowings will rluctuate with Clhan;e: in 
in lero~t ratl)s. 

/JJ 111. reporting dalll Into/est mlo pn)510 of Ii)I! ComPIIIIY·.lnlnrll5llH!arlnQ lilanc1alln&trumants I. as rolkma; 
Particulars 3Hlor·25 3t·MIII·24 
Flxod',ato fn.!rumant 
FlnanctalAsset 1,941.00 8.619.00 
Financial liabilities 

Floating rate Instrument 
Flnancfal Asset 
FinanclolUllI>liIIns 19.651..20 19.&51.20 

28 Fair Value Measurements 
.) FI • 1\ nilnCl.ll nstrumanls bV calGQoI'Y 

Particular! As. 0I315t Marel1, 202~ 
FVTPL FVTOel Amortised Cost 

Financial A ..... at Amortized COlt 
(il Trade Receivables 79565 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 1.948.38 
(iii) Other financial assets 27.067.82 

29811.85 
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost 

(il Borrowings 19.651.20 
(ii) Trade Payables 1.822.54 
(iii) O1hor filUlncial ilIlbiille. 1.801.62 

23275.56 

Particulars A. ot JIst March. 2024 
FVrPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost 

Flnanolal Assets atAn10ri!zod Co.t 
(i) T redo Receivables 1,462.75 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8.622.75 
(iii) Other financial assets 20404.87 

)0490.37 
Flnancl.1 Liabilities at Amortized Cost 

(i) Borrowings 19.651.20 
(ii) Trade Payables 2,532,28 

. ~ iiiitOlher fiMncial labilities 966.47 
23,149.95 

b) Fair value hierarchy 
Financial assets and financial ~abilities are measured at fair value in these financial statements and are grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy, The three Levels are defined based on 
Levell: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active martets for identical assets or liabilities. 

c) 

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Levell that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly 
Level 3: UnobselVable inputs for the asset or tiabiliiy. 

Carrying va ue iUld Fair valuo of financial B!Sets Ind IlablUUn a6 al31st March 2025 
Particulars Carl}'ing Value 

Level·l 
Fln.ncll l As .. '" ot AlT1OrtllOd Cost 

n) Trade Receivables 795.65 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 1,948,38 
(iii) Other financial assets 27,067.62 

29811.85 
Flnancl.f Llabmties at Amortized Cost 

(i) BOlTOwings 19.651.20 
(ii) Trade Payables 1,822.54 
(ID) Other finencl.lliabilities 1.601.62 

23,275.56 

Fair Value 
Level·2 Lovel·) 

795.65 
1,948.38 

27,067.82 
29,811.85 

. 19,651.20 
1,822.54 
1.801 .82 

23,275.56 
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CarrylnQ •• Iue and Fair value of nnancl.I ... ets and lI,blOtin a. 0131. 1 Uarch 2014 
Partlcul.", Carrying Value 

Financial As.ets at Amortized Cost 
(i) Trade Receivables 1.462.75 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8,622.75 
(iii) Other financial assets 20.404.87 

30,490.31 
Flnanclalliabilili .. at Amortized Cost 

(i) Borrowings 19.651.20 
(ii) Trade Payablos 2,532.28 

Jilil. Other financial liabilities 966.47 
23,149.95 

FalrValue 
Level·l Level·2 Level·J 

1,462.75 
8,622.75 

20.404.87 
30,490.37 

. 19,651.20 . - 2,532.28 
966.47 

23149.95 
The menagement'""""'sod thai flIir , aluo (J/ trod. recalVables, cash and cash equIValents, trade payables, and other ou"ent Man~1 assets I fiebl IIU •• ·approxlmoI. thOII ca"l''''g amounts 1.'lIel\' 
due to the short-term maturities of these insbumenls The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current 
transaction between willing parties. 

29 Capital Management 
The Company's objectives when menaging capital are to salaguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise retums to shareholders. Tha capital structure of the company is based on 
managemenrs judgement of its strategic and day-lo-day needs with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and markeL confidence. The management and the Board of Directors 
monitor the rerum on capital The Company may take appropriate sleps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital strucllJre. 

The Company monitors capital, on the basis of a number 01 financial ratios generally used by industry and by the rating agencies. The Company monitors capital using debt equity ratio which is debt 
divided by total equity. Debt comprises 01 non-current and current maturities 01 long term debt The debt equity ratio at the end of the repcrting period is aslollows: 

Partlcula", Asat Aut 
31.t March. 2025 31stlbrch 2024 

Borrowings (Nole No. 11) 19,651.20 19,65120 
Current Maturities 01 Long term Debt . 
Debt 19651.20 19,651.20 
Equity (Note No.9) 5.00 5.00 
Other Equity (Note No.1 0) 9947.47 9,616.34 
Total Equllv 9.95Vl1 9,621.34 
aebt Equl1:y RaUo 1.97 2.04 

30 Rev..,ue 
A. Disaggregation of Revenue 

Set out below is the disaggregation of the company's revenue from contracls with customers into operating segment and type of product or S8fVices 

Typo of Product For th~ye.r ended 31.03.2025 

or Services Revnn • • as !>or Ind AS 115 Mothod for meaaurin~ porfarnunco obllgaUon Other Revenue Total as per Statement of 
DomHUc Forolgn Total inp.utMoIhod Output Method Profit and Loss 

Hiohway 11 789.12 11.789 12 11789.12 - 11.789.12. 
Total 11.789.12 11,789.1.2 11789J 2 11189.12 

The revenue 01 Rs 11789.12 Lakhs i. recognised over a period of time, 

Typo of !>roduct For tha year ended 31 .03.2024 

or Services Rovonu. as par Ind AS 115 Mothod lor mea.urlng performonco obligation Other Revenue I Total as per Statement of 
DomnUc Foreign Total Input Method Output Method Profit and Los. 

Highway 24.387.98 24,38798 24,367.96 24.387.98 
Total 243&7.98 24,387.98 24.387.98 2.4l87.98 

Tha revenue 01 Rs 24387.98 Lakhs is racognised over a period of time. 

B. Contract balano •• 
particulars As at As at 

3tot March 2025 31st March 2024 
Trade Receivables Note 6.1 795.65 1.4.62.75 
Contract Assolll Nota 5 & 6 21 27059.52 20.402.29 
CCIIltract iabfitv Nola 13 3856.29 1.940,79 

Conbact Assels are recognised over the period in which services are performed to represent the Company's right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transrarred to the customer. II 

QVQII'10n tl n contract A old • th Ii d so U",lg' D PD I) 

Partlcul.", Asat A. at 
31 sl March. 2.025 31st Murch, 2024· 

Contracl asset at the Beginning of the year 20,40229 2,480.46 
Contract asset at the end 01 the year 27.059.52 20 402.29 
Not Incrus6/' docreata 6657.23 11921.8J .. For tho year 2024-25 &. 2023·24, there has been net Increase of Rs, 6657.23 L.kh. &. Ro. It n l .B! L.~h . respeclively due to recognition of revenue based on mput method whereas bills for 
WOi'Kdone are certified based on contract condition, There is no reclassification from unbilled revenue to trade receivables during the period. 

iil Contract liabilities relating to conslruction contracts are balances due to cuslomers, these arise when a particular milestone payment exceeds the revenue recognised to date under the inpuL 

Particulars As at Aut 
31.t March 2025 ~1.t March, 2.024 

Contract l abilities at the Beginning of the year 1,940.79 3.375.00 
Contract fiabilties at the end 01 the year 3.856.29 1.940.79 
Nelincre .. 1li deer •••• 1.915.50 1434.21 

For the year 2024·25, there has been a notincrease 01 Rs. 1915.50 Lakhs mainly due to advance received from client For the year 2023·24, there has been a net decrease 01 Rs. 1434.21 Lakhs 
mainly due to revenue recognised during the year and adjusted against such advance received from the client 

C. Setout below islhtl amount of revenue reec n[s.ed rtDm~ 

Particulars 

Amount included in contract liabiNties at the beginning of the period 
Perlonmance obligation satisfied in PIllvious period 

Aut 
31.t March, 2025 

146.31 

A. at 
31st March, 2024 

2,13604 
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D. COlt 10 obtain the contract 
The Company has not incurred any incremental costs of obtaining contracts with a customer and therefore, not recognised an asset for such costs. 

E. Tranlaction plica allocated to the remaining performance obligations 
The lransac~on price for remaining performance obligations shall be received over the contracl period in proportion of the wort performed/services provided by the Company. 
Information about the Company's performance obligations are summarised below: 

The tranoaction price allocated 10 Ihe ramaining performance obligations (unsatisfied Of partially unoatislied) as al 3151 Ma",h are a. follows: 

Particulars As at Asat 
311t March 2025 31st March. 2024 

Wilhln on. year 8693222 58321.26 
Mom Ill ... """y"", to 2 v ..... 250.00 125.00 

Morathan2y .. " 3 500.00 3 625.00 
Total 90.682.22 62,071.26 

Tho .mount /Ii,,\ooad above does not ,ncludo """"hie consideralion which '5 constra,ned. 

31 Service Concession Arrangements 
Public to privale service concession arrangements are recorded in accordance with Appendix ·C"- Service Concession Arrangements (lnd AS-11S), Appendix "C· is applicable ir: 
a) The Granlor controls or ragulales which selVic .. the "" ... Ior should provide with the inlrastruclure. to whOfn it must provide them, and al whal price; and 
b) The 13010"', conlncls-ihrtlUgh oW1l!lrsl1lp. bel\8fiCIIII entitle.,.,n~ or othelWfs&- anY significant rasidual inlers.1 in th. infrastrucwrn alillo end of the lerm 01 tho annagemenl 
II both 0' tho 01"". condliion. are mol .I"",I~usly, a fin""cl. 1 asset is recognized 10 the extent thai the operalol hQS an ullOOnditionol contraclual righllo rscolv. cash or other financial assel from or 
at the discretion of the Grantor for the service. 

These financial assets are initially recognized al cost which is underslood as the fair value of the SOIVice provided plus other direcl cosls direolly allribulable 10 the ope<ation. They are then slBled al 
amortized cost at the end of each financial year, 
Ircon Gurgon Rewari Highwey Limiled (IGRHL) has enlered into selVice concession arrangemenl with National Highway Authorily of India (NHAI) daled 20th January 2021 in lerms 01 which NHAI (the 
grantor) has authorized the company lor upgradation of Gurgaon pataudi Rewari section 01 NH·352W trom Km 0.00 10 Km 43.87 (design length 46.11 km) as a leeder roule on Hybrid annuily mode under 
Bh"",lmala Pariyojalla in the slate of Haryana, In lerms 01 the !BId agreemenllGRHL has an obligation 10 complele constructi ... 01 the projecl ollourlsix laning road. The Projecl is under Hybrid Annuily 
Modal.HCWl!Jv.r, additional woos as change 01 scope has been awarded by NHAI and are under execution. 

The Concession period shall be 15 years commencing from the Commercial operation date. AI the end of the concession period, the assels will be transferred back to National Highway Authorily of India 
(NHAI). 
In cese of malerial breach in lerms of agreemen~ the NHAI and IrconGRHL have righllo lerminale the agreement il they are nol able 10 cure the event of delaull in accOfdance with such agrsemenl 
Comp.1OY hal rsoogn~ fillilnclal ."",10' R5. 25573.741okho (FY 2023-24: 1931s.n 1.8I<1\s) under "IVTee c"'lca""" agr .. menl upto the pe~od ended 3101 March 2025 an ... tamg lnto B,coo"litle 
""",I, ables dUil 110\0 NHAI on ~Ielion 01 mll",lonQ'5 par lermool Iha ""!Itracl. Tho ocmpany t1as recogni .. d ""'.1W~01 Rs 11789.12 Lakhs (FY 2023·24' 24381.98 1.81< ... ) lor lhaporiod ended on 
31st Mareh 2025 on ' onslruclion 01 Road undor SCA ""d OperaUon Revenue 0' PO[ lrid AS·115 (elated to ·Rev""u. from Cu,'omers·. The company h .. recogniled leCe<voble under ~c. ccnc.""ion 
arrangamenl and shown under Other Non Cu"",,1 Financial Assels which il will receive as per tenns of the contracl based on the completion of milestone, as on 31st MaI1:h 2025 

Olsclosuroln looms of Appendix 0 of Ind AS 115: 
In terms of the disclosure required in Appendix 0 in Ind AS -115 Revenue from Customers, as notified in the companies (IndiM Accounting Standard) rules 2016, the amount considered in the financial 
slalamenls up 10 the balanco sheel dale are as lollows:-

Particulars For the year ended For the year . nded 
]1.03.2025 31.03.2024 

COI1troct Revenue RllCOWlized 11.789.12 24,387.98 
AARrt,!!Ote amounl 01 cost incurred 9,997.08 23,961 .22 
Amounl of advance received lrom Client J.8S6.29 1,940.79 
Amounl of retention by Clienl 1,485.78 '1,083.56 
Prom,I( Loss) rec~nised durinR the period for exchanRe of construction SEMce for a financial asset 1,792.04 426.76 
GIols .mounldue Irom eli ... l lor Contracl Wor'" 26369.39 20781.48 

32 leases 

33 

a) Company IS a lessee 
(i) The Company has no leasing arrangamenl which are non-eancellable in nalure. Accordingly, no righl 01 use assels and leaSE liabilities have baen recognised by the Company. 

(ii) The Company has entered into a cancellable lease agreement for office premises commencing from 01 April 2023 to 31 March 2025 However, since the lease is cancellable by either party at 
any Ume with one month's notice without incurring a significant penalty, the lease does not create an enforceable right to use the asset for a period of time 

Tha (on"", oro the amounls re 
Particula .. 

EXDenso ralatin to leases Refer N-Dlo 19 

b) Company asa L .... r 
Company has no leasing arrangemenl as a lessor. 

OeWl. 01 delayod payml!1lt 10 Micro and Sm.1I Ento.rprl .... , d.~nod under the MSMED Act. 200i 
S.No. Particulo .. 

a) The principal amount and the tnl.",st duolhS(eon femair]I"II unpaid 10 any supplier as althe nnd of ClId, accounUng year. 
• Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 
• Interest due on above 

b) The amounlof interesl paid by the buyer in lerms of Section 16 of the MSMEO Acl2D06 along with the amounls 01 the payment made 
0) The amoonl 01 inte",,1 due and payable IOf the period 01 delay in making paymenl (which have been paid bul beyond the appoinled drr( 
d) The amount of interest accrued and remaininj:! unpaid at the end of each accountinA year 
D) The ~moo"1 01 fur1lrer inlnlMl remaining due and pay.blo .'11/1 In the sllOCOedlng ya"" unUl oUch dala when the inln""t !Was lIS 

Forthe year ended 
31.03.2025 

4.86 

A.at 
31.t Morch 2025 

For the year ended 
31.03.2024 

4.66 

Asot 
31 sI Maral! 2024 

-
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Not .. to financial statements for the year ended 31.t March 2025 
(All amounl!l in blinn Rup .... l.nI;ho unless oJrerwise staled) 

34 Corporat. Social ROIponslblllty 
As per Section 135 of the Companies Ac~ 2013 , the Company is required to spend, in every financial year, at leasl two per cenl 01 the average nel profils of the Company made during the three 
immedialely preceding financial years Of whOfe the company has not completed the period 01 three financial years since ils inCOlpOration, during such immediately preceding financial years in accordance 
with ils CSR POlicy, The details of CSR e"Pensas for the year ana as under. 

A A led mountr-aqu r 10 be spont on CSR ActMO .. 

I Particulars 
For the year ended For the year .ndod 

31.0U025 31,03.2024 
I~"'" amount required 10 be spent by Jre Company during the year 6,98 
AmoUnt approved by lIIe Eklanl 10 be sPOnl during the v .... 0,96 

s . AmounllPentito be 5Jl'llnt on CSR Activities 

particular. For the year ended For tho y.arandod 
31 ,03.2025 31.03,2024 

On CaruIrucIkml""luj>iJion of any .ssal~ 
On purposas other than above (For other then ongoing projects)' 6,96 
On purposas other than above (For ongoing projects)' . 
Total 6.96 

Thone are no relaled party IrDlU!lcUon In respect to CSR expenditure. 

c. Breilk:uD or 01, CS'R IDxp"enses Llnd'llr malor hnadu I, u undar: 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
Contribution 10 Prime Minisler Cares Fund 6.96 

Total 6.96 

DO otllill ralatad 10 unlliPenl oblluUon.a:: 
For the year ended Forthe year ended 

Particulars 31.03..2025 31.03.2024 
Unspont amount In ,ototion to: 

Ongoing project (as per F below) 
Other than ongojilQ pro]",,1 (a. per E below) 6.96 

E Dotoll oIi1led Sf to unspent arnoun eXCiJ5S ilmount sponU 
Partfwl.tI For tha yaar ended For the year ended 

31 .03.2025 31.03.2024 
OpeninQ Ilalance 
Amount deposited in specified fund of schedule VII within 6 months 
Amount required to be spent during the year (as per (A) above) 6.96 
An_I. spent durfnR tha \'t'lI'{1U pet (b) abova) 
Clo,lno bal.nc. Shortl.tUExCOSI amount s~.nt by tho compOJlY) 6.96 
Note. The Ccmp,ny hed an unspent CSR amount 01 Rs. 6.96 Iokh. (FY 23·24 R • • Nil Lakhs) whICh company will deposit In PM Care. fund as . pacmod In .chodul. VII 01 the Companies Act 
2013. 

F. Ongoln~ pfO/ect: 
OpenIng B.lance Amount Amounl spent durina the .... Closing Balanca 

required to be FrDm Company'. bank From Separate CSR 

With Company lin Separate CSR Unspent Alc spent during tho Ale UnspentAic With Company I In Separate CSR Unspent 
yoor Alc 

- I . -
Cl Other Olsolo.u",· 

Forthe year ended For the year ended 
ParUculara 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Details of reJ.ted party IrDnsactions, e.g., contribution to a bust controlled by the company in retation to CSR e'penditure as per relevant 
Wham. DIOIIir;lon ia mede v.ith respect to a liabilit)oincurred by entering into a contractual oblioation, the movements in the provision 

35 OIsclooure pursuantto section 186 of the Companies Act 2013: 
There are no loans given, investments made and guarantee given are made by the Company during the period. 

36 Other Statutory Dilclosur .. 
The MeA vide notification dated 24th March 2021 has amended Schedule III to the Companies Acl2013 in respecl or cerlain disclosures which are applicable rrom 1st April 2021 . The Company has 
incorporated the changes as per !he said amendment in the financial stalements and below disclosures are made in compliance of the said amendment: 

(i) The Company has no transactions with companies slruck off under section 248 of !he Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 or Companies Act, 1956 during the financial year ending 31 sl March 
2025 and 31st March 2024. 

(ii) The Company has not IrDded Of invested in Crypto Currency or Virlual Currency during the financial year ending 3151 March 2025 and 31.t March 2024 
~ii) The Company do not have any Benami property as on 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami 

property 

(iv) The Company do not have any prior period error.; in financial year ending on 31st March 2025 and 3151 March 2024 10 be disclosed separately in Slatement of changes in equity, 

(v) The Company has no cases of any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the stalutory period in the financial year ending 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024, 

(vi) During the financial year 2024·25 and 2023·24, the Company have not advanced or loaned or invesled funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the 
understanding that the Intermediary shall: 
(a) direcUy or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimale Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the fike to or on behalf 01 the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

(vii) During the financial year 2024·25 and 2023·24, the Company have not raoeived any fund from any person(s) Of entity~es), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with Jre understanding 
(whether recorded in writing or othOfwisa) that the Company shall: 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on beha~ of the Funding Party (Ultimale Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantes, security or the like on behall of the U~mate Beneficiaries, 

(viii) The Company has not granted any loans and advances in the nature of loans to promoters, direclor.;, KMP and other related parties in the financial year ending 31st March 2025 and 31st March 
2024 except the advance of Rs Nil Lakhs given in FY 24·25 (FY 23-24 Rs, 334.80 Lakhs). 

(ix) The Company does not have any immovable properties as at 31s1 March 2025 and 31st March 2024, therefore the question of holding immovable properties in the name of the company doss nol 
arisa 
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Note. to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 
(All amounts io Indian Rupees Lakhs unless othelWise stated) 

(x) The Company has not been declared as willul delautter by any bank or financial institution or govemmant or any government authorily in the finarcial year 2024·25 and 2023·24 
(xi) Company is not required to submit statement of current assets with the bank and therefore reconcilation of the statement filed by the company with bank and the books of accounls is not 

applicable. 

(xii) During the financial year, the company had availed loan of Nil (FY 2023-24 Rs, 80 crore) from Indian Overseas Bank out of which Nil (FY 2023-24 Rs. 79 crore) has been placed as fixed depo~l 

(xlii) The Company have not entered into any schemers) of arrangements during the year ending 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024. 

(xiv) The Company has not entered in any lransaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income 
Tax Ac~ 1961 (such as search or surveyor any otherrelevant provisions of thelncorne Tax Ac~ 1961. 

fxv) Company has not received any grants and donations during the year ending 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024. 
(xvi) The Company does not have any Capital Work· in· Progress, Investment Property, Intangible Assets and Intangible Assets under Development as at 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024 

During the year 2024-25 and 2023·24, the company has not revalued any of its Property,plant and equipmenl 

Il(vlO The lolJowinc accountinn ratio. "'" dloclosed: · 
S,No Particulars Numerator Denominator March 31 s~ 2025 March 311~ 2024 % change Reason for change more 

than 25% 
a) Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.98 2.73 ·2729% Decrease in the Current 

Asset and Increase in the 
current liabilities during year 
as compared to the last year 

b) Debt-equily ",Uo Total Debt Shareholders 1.97 2,04 ·333% NA 
Equity 

c) Debt service coverage ratio Eamings for debt service - Net Oebt service - 1.19 1.59 ·2503',l, Increase in term loan 
profit after taxes + Non-cash Inlerest & Lease interest in current year as 

operating expenses Payments + compared to last year 
Principal 

Repayments 
d) Return on equily ",tio Net Profits after taxes - Average 0,03 0.05 ·30.02% Due to increase in Share 

Preference Dividend Shareholders average equity 
Equily(lncluding 
Quasi Equity) 

e) Inventory tumover ratio Cosl 01 goods sold Average Inventory 0,00 0.00 N,A NA 

Q Trade rectlivab~ tumover Net credit sales= Gross credit Average Tr.lde 10.44 81t 28.73% Decrease in average 
ralJo sales- sales return Receivable dDbb:lr& Inc:t1Iase In credlt 

sale in current Year 
g) T rede P"Yoblo turnover r.oo Net credit purchases = Gross Average Trade 4,52 6.87 ·34.20% Decrease in average 

credit purchase$. purchase Payables creditor & credit ourchase 
h) Net capital turnover ",tio Net Sales - T otalsales- sal .. Working capital- 1.53 2.45 ·37.55% Decrease in sale 

return Current assets- &decrease in Working 
Current liabilities capital 

I) Net pmfil ,,,ti~ Net Profit Net Sales = Total 003 0,02 65,44% Decrease in PAT 
sales- sales &decrease in Sale 

return 
J) Return on capital employed Eamings before inlerest and Capital Employed 0.07 0.13 ·42.84% Decrease in the current Ye;J( 

tax .. = Tangible Net profi~EBIT) 

Worth + Total 
Debt + Deferred 

Tax Liabilily 

k) Retun on investment Il1C(lme generated fnxn Investment 0.00 000 NA !'1ft 

37 Changes In accounting policies and disclosures 
The Company has adopled certain new accounting standards and amendments effective from April 1, 2024. Ind AS.I17, Insurance Con~acts, which replaces Ind AS 104, ptlWides comprehensive 
guidance on the recognition, measuremen~ presentation, and disclosure of insurance con tracts; however, it had no impacL on the Company's financial statomen ts as the Company has not entered into 
any insurance contracts 
Further, an amendment to Ind AS 116, Leases, relating to lease liabilities arising from sale and leaseback transactions, was also notified. Since the Company has not undertaken any such transactions, 
the amendment did not affect its financial statements. As of the reporting dale, there are no new standards that have been notified but are not yet effective 

38 Other disclosures 
(i) The company is incorpo",led on 24th December 2020 as wholly owned subsidiery of Ircon IntemaUonal Limiled, Ircon Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited has entered in 10 seNice conc~on 

arrangemenl on 20th January 2021 with National Highwoy.uthorit): oi lndia (NHAI) in lerm of which NHAI (Authority) has authorised the company tQ augment the exisb~g road from Km 0.000 to 
Km43.87 (apprnximalely 46.11km)on the G"'llaon-p.IDUd[·RelYil/I sec:tioo of National Highway No. 352 (NH·352)in the stale of Haryana b~ foUl/six laning lIlereot (the project) on d~gn, build, 
operate and transfer (Ille 'Hybrid annuily') basis, which shall be partly financed by the conc~on.ire who shall recover its inveslment and costs through payments to be made by the authorily, in 
accordance with the term and conditions as set forth in service concession agreement 

(ii) The Company has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from banks and other perties. 
(,ij In the oplnian of the manag.rqenl the value of assels on realisation in the ordinary course of business, will nol bel.., lIlan lIle value at which these are staled in the Balance Shoal 
[iv) FigulOS roimded off to the nOllr .. 1 rupees in Lakh with Iw. decimals. 

39 Certain prior poriodl amount have boon reclassified for ccnsist!ll)CY with the current period presentations. These recla~fications have no effect on the reported results 01 operations Also previous yea< 
figures ere shown under bracket 0 ID diHl!flIt1tial3 from CUJTOllt yON figUres. 

Place: Nolda 
Dale: 29.04,2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

_)l..JItl~;plr .. C0"ln Gurgaon Rewan Highway umi~ 

II d 
DI~ r 

(OIN:,09 aSS)) 

Place: New Deihl 
Oat.: 29.04.2025 

_=l , 
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IRCON GURGAON REWARI HIGHWAY
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

The preparation of llnancial statements of IRCON Gurgaon Rewari Highway

Limited for the year ended 3l March 2025 in accordance with the ltnancial

reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 20 1 3, is the

responsibility of the management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor

appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139

(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements

under Section 143 ofthe Act, based on independent audit in accordance with

the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This

is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 29 April

2025.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have

decided not to conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements of

IRCON Gurgaon Rewari Highway Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

under Section 1+3 (6)(a) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 1O.O7.2o25

Teg Singh
Principal Director of Audit

Railway Commercial, New Delhi

)
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